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ABBREVIATIONS

& 8

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the
following meanings unless otherwise specified:

“Board”

“Company”

“Directors”

”GI’OUp”

“Hong Kong”

“Listing Rules”

“PRC"

“SEQ”

“Stock Exchange”

"HKS"

“RMB”

“Usp”

u%n

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEIEIEREREAT

the board of directors of the
Company

New Provenance Everlasting
Holdings Limited

the directors of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the
PRC and Taiwan

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the
PRC

United States dollars

per cent
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—E== T
HKS’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Operational Results R
Revenue Y & 1,888,298 262,229
Gross profit EH 19,108 10,908
Profit/(loss) for the year Frymfl, (E5i8) 1,337 (5,437)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable RABEE NEGEREFR]
to owners of the Company (&518) 1,842 (5,452)
As at 31 March
W=B=+—H
2023 2022
—EZ=HF —E-
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Financial Position B SRR
Non-current assets JEREMEE 45,806 55,446
Current assets MENE E 1,759,370 569,573
Current liabilities MEIEE (1,315,745) (87,318)
Net current assets MEEEZFE 443,625 482,255
Non-current liabilities JEREMBE (5,359) (15,677)
Total equity T m 4D RE 484,072 522,024
Non-controlling interests JEITRS R 9,134 9,053
Total equity attributable to owners KA B AELE R AEEE
of the Company 493,206 531,077
Profit/(loss) per share (HK cent) SREAN (8518) GBW) 0.009 (0.026)
Key Ratio Analysis FELEE SR
Gross profit margin ETIES 1.0% 4.2%
Net profit/(loss) margin 4R (4EIBXR) 0.1% (2.1%)
Current ratio (Note 1) TRENELE (HfaE1) 1.34 6.52
Note: Mzt -
1: Current ratio: Current assets divided by current liabilities. 1 MENLEE | RBEERUTREAaE.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARAE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Yu-shun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 19 September 2022 and appointed
as Chairman and re-designated as Chief Executive Officer
on 1 October 2022)

Ms. Sun Le

Mr. Sin Lik Man
(resigned on 30 September 2022 and
with effect from 1 October 2022)

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Sun Di

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Mr. Tang Kin Nam
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho
(appointed on 18 October 2022)
Mr. Wang Ye
(retired on 16 September 2022)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Kin Nam
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho

(appointed on 18 October 2022)
Mr. Wang Ye

(retired on 16 September 2022)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Kin Nam
Mr. Ho Yu-shun

(appointed on 1 October 2022)
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho

(appointed on 18 October 2022)
Mr. Sin Lik Man

(resigned on 30 September 2022 and

with effect from 1 October 2022)
Mr. Wang Ye

(retired on 16 September 2022)

EFg

HITESE

REBRE (F/EFETEHAER)

(R _E-—FEAA+NHESER
RCET T FELA—HEZTE
FEIBESTTHAEE)

Y S

R
(RZEZZFNAF=+HFE
BEE__F+H—HEER

FHITES
BBt

BaMIERITES

REM AT AE

BRI A

=t
(R—E__—F+A+/\HEZT)

FEEE
(R—EZ_—FAF+NHEE)

BERZZEY

REMEE (F/E)

BRI A

=t
(R—E__F+A+/\HEZT)

FEEE
(R—EZ_—FAF+NHEIE)

HNEEE

REMAEE (F/E)

BEm AL

ASELE
(R—E__—F+HA—HEZE)

B A e
(R—E__—F+H+/\HEZE)

R
(R-ZEZZFNHF=+HFE
BEE__F+H—HEER

EEEE
(R—EZ_F /1 NHEIE)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman)
(re-designated as Chairman on 19 September 2022)
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Mr. Ho Yu-shun
(appointed on 1 October 2022)
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho
(appointed on 18 October 2022)
Mr. Sin Lik Man
(resigned on 30 September 2022 and
with effect from 1 October 2022)
Mr. Wang Ye
(retired on 16 September 2022)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman)
(re-designated as Chairman on 19 September 2022)
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Mr. Ho Yu-shun
(appointed on 1 October 2022)
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho
(appointed on 18 October 2022)
Mr. Wang Ye
(retired on 16 September 2022)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Ho Yu-shun
(appointed on 1 October 2022)
Ms. Ng Wing Suen
(appointed on 1 August 2022)
Mr. Sin Lik Man
(resigned on 30 September 2022 and
with effect from 1 October 2022)
Mr. Hui King Tat
(ceased on 1 August 2022)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Wing Suen

(appointed on 1 August 2022)
Mr. Hui King Tat

(ceased on 1 August 2022)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

ATEH
RHEZEYE
WEmLtE (F/E)
(R ZEZ_FEAH A+ HEFTELTE)
REM LA
ASELE
(R—E__—F+HA—HEZE
B e 4
(R—E_—_F+H+/\HEZE)
IR
(RZEZZFNAF=+HFE
BE - _F+H—HEER
FEEE
(RZEZ_—FAF+NHEIE)
AREELZE T
WEmLtE (F/E)
(R B —FEAH A+ HEFTELTE)
REM LA
S8 Lt
(R—E__—F+HA—HEZE
=t
(R—E__—F+H+/\HEZE)
FEEE
(RZEZ_—FAF+NHEIE)
REAER
ASE Lt
(R—E__—F+HA—HEZE
REENE L+
R—E__—F/\F—HEZE)
IR

(R —ZEFEZ—FAH=+HEFFE"
B _ZF - —F+H—HELN)
SFAE S A
(R—ZFE-Z—F/\H—HEET)
NEIME
RN+
R—E-—F/\H—HEZF)
SFRGE LA
(R—ZFEZ—F/\H—HEET)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
STOCK CODE

2326

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House 2
Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEAD OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Unit 1102, 11/F
Shui On Centre
No. 6-8 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
17/F., Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

COMPANY HOMEPAGE

http://www.npegroup.com.hk
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EE%E (&8 gHNEHERERAR
AR {7 X8R

2326

RS

Clarendon House 2
Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

BERATEER B RAMERE

FEET
B8 1E6-85%
WmZH
11181102F

FEERIRT

FEERRITROBMRAF
Bk EBTHERRE
ERIRT (BB BRAE
BERTAERRF
FFEERTARAT

FERMBRERE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

EERMNBRERZDE

BEMERBERAR
5B

ERE165%
ERSEAPO7IE
N E L

http://www.npegroup.com.hk
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETREBE

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023
(the “Year”).

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the Year, the Group has been principally engaged in
the sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related industrial
materials, and the production and sale of industrial products.

Due to the spread of the Omicron variant outside of the Asia
Pacific region during the last financial year, soaring demand
for physical goods has increased congestion in various ports
and pushed up costs and disrupted maritime logistics at major
ports, despite this, the sourcing and sale of metal minerals and
related industrial materials business had been able to gradually
pick up the delayed sales from the last financial year.

On the other hand, the relatively severe epidemic situation in
the PRC in the fourth quarter of 2022 led to the lockdown and
seal management, which led to a decrease in profit for the Year
of the Group’s wholly-owned PRC subsidiary ZE FEEIRIFE
Riz &R BARAE (literally translated as Ningxia Huaxia
Integrated Waste Recycling Company Limited) in Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region of the PRC. The management of the
Group will keep reviewing its operational performance and
efficiency from time to time to further improve its return to the
shareholders of the Company.

PROSPECTS

Over the last few years, the Group faced different kinds of
challenges and the management has continued to adjust its
pace in the ever-changing environment. Since the beginning
of the epidemic, the Group has been affected by blockades
and lockdown, which has led to great changes in the supply
chain system. The Group was adversely affected by the increase
in freight time and costs which were caused by the halting
production progress in various places and the congestion in
various ports. In later stages of the epidemic in 2022, with
inflation wrecking havoc in the world and the USD remaining
strong, while the global economy is facing the risk of a rapid
downturn, the Group is also looking for a balance amid the
slow economic recovery in light of the end of the epidemic and
the recession caused by high-inflation.

RANZBLEARERDEFEMARREAREER
HIBAE (B TAEE) BE_ T _=F=H
=+—HLEFE (KEE) 2FHK-

EHBRR

rEE AEETIERERBRIBEEBRY R
HATERMUREERMEE TEXREMER -

i Omicron# @RS 1 LB /M BEEERIN D
AHE LIS HEYE ST REF IR 2 @8
ORMEEBRILESKA  TEBOMNE YR
RE TR BENL SREENRBRIHE U
R I EMEEBER L - BEER 312
IEEIHE » B RIE ERIEBRIKTF -

B—HE FER S EENTEBEEER
1> DR E HE s RAERUNPHEER
HEARZEETBEMBARNZEEEERFRER
FREMBERRARAEENNERL ~EEBE
BEEGBREBTRBRIHBEERRRME  UE—
TUEHREREREHRMOER -

AR

BEHE AEE-—ERBRFARBEAPE ™
EEBOETHBENRETFEREENS - B
BIERBLUR AEET R R EH#E HIEDN
FE O BRHEREERELEEANE (L - ME
ENEEZERZEBONEEBEIEREER
BAMRAEN BN AEBEEFTFNZE B
BT CFRBRE BRAREERRRE
THFERBNER T 2WEEEEMBERET
THRE EREENERRSEREERR
FEBRTFREENEEERDRS T
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRS

There is no steel without manganese. Manganese is one of
the indispensable raw materials for all basic steel and special
steel products. The Group has been engaging in the sourcing
and sale of metal minerals for years, and has established
solid business relationships with the leading mine owners
in the world. As the global governments strive to recover
the economy by strengthening infrastructure construction
after the epidemic, with the loosening of epidemic control,
policies such as guarantee housing delivery policy have
been introduced intensively, and the central government
has set the tone for economic work, market expectations
have strengthened. This year, China will be focusing on the
economy, expansion of domestic demand, and optimization
of infrastructure all of which will help to gradually increase
the demand for steel, and will also drive the price stability and
growth of demand for manganese.

Global manganese chemical products are mainly produced
by manganese sulfate or manganese sulfate solution, and
manganese sulfate itself can also be directly used in batteries,
super capacitors and other fields. Battery-grade manganese
sulfate is one of the ternary materials for the preparation of
nickel-cobalt-lithium manganese oxide, the positive electrode
of lithium batteries. The battery of a new energy electric
vehicle is composed of a positive electrode, a negative
electrode, an electrolyte, and a diaphragm, and the ternary
battery is the positive electrode material. As environmental
protection issues continue to receive attention, the demand for
new energy is also increasing. Among them, the demand for
manganese sulfate is estimated to grow exponentially with the
development of new energy in the future, which is expected to
have a positive impact on the business development of metal
mineral sales and production and sales of industrial products of
the Group.

In the past, through implementing asset restructuring and
austerity measures, the Group has successfully reduced the
level of costs, and increased its liquidity to retain sufficient
capital and resources in order to seize the upcoming business
opportunities to further enhance shareholder returns.

EEAA HEMAEEREE FHREMAE
AR Z — AERERERBREEEERED
TECVRAERALNBELUEESERIFERNE
BRAG - BERBRE2IRBNE NELEERM
MAERER BERBFEZERK RITIEFHK
RBELEURTRERLE LIF HiHARE
B SEREFELB - BARNE - BILERR
i HEMBETRES LA RARTEEEE
BEREERBRIIER-

ENBCIERISENARMBENEEBR
B A REEHR MKEEBESETUNERE
FERREBEMN  BREARFAE BMRRKE
TR BEEEMEREREHEREEN =Tz —o
HMERBHTENBMHED Sk - BFER IR
PRFFAE A > T =T B MER EBM K - BEIRR
RERETHZINER > FEROB RO H 18
e HARREEFZ R RERGERREEHER
NERFE2HEUNE BHETERNEEIE
MHEREERBETXREREGEREALE
BT E-

BE BREEESEHEKRBER ~EEERY
BERE TRSES MNP BEEHNESR
RER BEER R EE  EME—FRA
IRER IR -
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On behalf of the Board, | hereby express my sincere gratitude
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Hong Kong, 27 June 2023

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRS
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BUSINESS REVIEW
e AR

OPERATIONS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year”), the Group was
principally engaged in the sourcing and sale of metal minerals
and related industrial materials and the production and sale of
industrial products.

Revenue and Gross Profit

The Group recorded an increase in revenue from approximately
HK$262,229,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022 (the
“Last Year”) to approximately HK$1,888,298,000 for the Year,
representing an increase by approximately 6.2 times as
compared to the Last Year. The Group's gross profit increased
by approximately 75.2% from approximately HK$10,908,000 for
the Last Year to HK$19,108,000 for the Year.

For the sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related
industrial materials business, the Group recorded a segment
revenue of approximately HK$1,768,648,000 for the Year
(Year ended 31 March 2022: approximately HK$163,441,000),
representing a significant increase by approximately 9.8 times
as compared to the Last Year. The sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials business had been
able to gradually pick up the delayed sales from the Last Year.
The segment profit was approximately HK$8,546,000 for the
Year (Year ended 31 March 2022: approximately HK$360,000).

For the production and sale of industrial products business
under EEEBRFRERGEFHAERAQE (literally
translated as Ningxia Huaxia Integrated Waste Recycling
Company Limited) (the “Waste Recycling Company”), the Group
recorded a segment revenue of approximately HK$119,650,000
for the Year (Year ended 31 March 2022: approximately
HK98,788,000), representing an increase of approximately
21.1% as compared to the Last Year. The segment profit was
approximately HK$9,381,000 for the Year, representing a
decrease of approximately 2.9% as compared to approximately
HK$9,662,000 for the Last Year. The decrease in segment profit
was mainly attributable to the suspension of production due to
the blockades and lockdown in the fourth quarter of 2022.

EZ e

BE_Z_=—F=-"A=+—BLFE (TXF
B AERTERERBERIFESBIERY KB
BMIERHMUREERBETERER

Wi K EF
rEEHERERBRE_SE_—_#=/A=+—8
WEEE (TEEE)) 249262,229,0008 T MNEA
FE 7 #91,888,298,00038 77 » 8 £ 4 E 1 N4Y6.2
fFoREREZ EF B EFE 24910,908,00078 7T 1
N#975.2%% A< 5 £ 2 4919,108,00078 7T ©

MRBEREECBRYREE TERNEREM
= AEBRRAFERRS DU E491,768,648,000
BT EHEZE_ _F£=ZHA=+—HLEE L
163,441,000787T) * B _EFE AIEIE I0499.81F o A&
EERBRHESBEYRAER TERNERD
REFEEFMSINNEEHE BHLEZTRER
BI7K T o REE R 758 EF) %5 498,546,00078 7T (&L
EIETF-R=1+—HIEEFE : £360,0008

7L) °

NEEEERFERGEMAARAD (MREAQ
) 2EERBETEXREREEMs ~&H
RAEE B RS D EIRE£119,650,00058 70 (B ZE
TEITHF=RB=+—HIFE : 498,788,000
7o) B EEEEMNA211% DR B EEELY
9,662, oooiﬁﬁ;ﬁz"\?ﬁz 9% ZE 7 £ FZ £99,381,00078
TN GEHVEERR _T - _FFNEH
ESR ﬂ?"f%ﬂ%éﬁﬁ:ﬁ°
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Other Net Income

During the Year, the Group recorded the other net income
of approximately HK$2,185,000 (Year ended 31 March 2022:
approximately HK$2,057,000) which mainly comprised net
foreign exchange gain or loss together with interest income
and sundry income. The net foreign exchange gain or loss was
arisen from the exposure to foreign exchange risk, which was
mainly related to Renminbi (“RMB”) and United Stated dollars
("USD"). Over the last two years, the Group’s management has
successfully minimized the Group'’s foreign currency exposure
and therefore the net foreign exchange gain or loss amount
was maintained at the relatively low level for both of the Year
and the Last Year.

The overall variance between the other net income recorded
for the Year and for the Last Year was approximately 6.2%, and
there was no material fluctuation for the other net income
recorded for the Year as compared to the Last Year.

Administrative Expenses

During the Year, the Group recorded the administrative
expenses of approximately HK$14,816,000 (Year ended 31
March 2022: approximately HK$13,601,000). Due to the
suspension of production in the fourth quarter of 2022,
the Waste Recycling Company’s administrative expenses
increased due to the blockades and lockdown. Therefore,
the overall administrative expenses of the Group increased
by approximately 8.9% as compared with the Last Year.
Administrative expenses primarily include staff costs, general
administrative expenses and depreciation.

Other Operating Expenses

During the Year, the Group recorded the other operating
expenses of approximately HK$1,296,000 (Year ended 31
March 2022: approximately HK$4,425,000). Other operating
expenses are mainly represented by the loss on deregistration
of subsidiaries, loss allowance recognised/reversal of loss
allowance on trade receivables, loss allowance recognised/
reversal of loss allowance on other receivables, reversal of
impairment loss/impairment loss recognised on deposits and
prepayments, impairment loss recognised on non-controlling
interests, and written down of inventories.

BUSINESS REVIEW
FE 5[0l B8

HAthig AF 88
rEE  AEEBFEMIAFERL2,185,000

Bt HEZS-__FE=ZRA=+—HLEE &
2,057,00057T) > T E2IGE R WM EIE/FEE &
BEF B WA K HETE UL A o BE 72 UK 25 o4 5 189 38 2R

BXERARE (AR®K) kx5 (T%7T)) 8E
RSMNERBFFEE -RNBEMBEEE  AEEE

BEERIRAERIERREERERE At
rEER LEENER WD NERFEDERR

HEBEAIKT -

rEEHE FTFEFMBRSHEMAZERZ EE
RBERMNM6.2% B EFERL ZEEMRS
BYEL M AR BRI S B KR E)

THREX

AREE > AEBRBITHHEEZ414,816,0008 7T
(BE_Z__#=H=+— ElJtE}* 7
13,601,000 7%) " IRRABIRA S ZZFF
NEHERHEEREEMRITHRES L lJtt
NEBEBITHASZR EEEIEN498.9% 1T
Y TEOFEETHRA  —RITEESZ RITE.

HiniSEpsk

AEE > AEEREHEMEERZ41,296,000
BT EHEIE I _F=ZB=1+—HILEFE &
4,425,000/87T) c A S M I EBEFHTE
NEIBIE BB SFIBEEBEEEE 0
FIEEE HaEWEIBEmBEIEERE 0
BEEE RERBORBRELDEERE BFE
RBEBEE - FERERCEIAREGEEREES
RS ©
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BUSINESS REVIEW
F 5[0l B8

OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Finance Costs

During the Year, the Group recorded the finance costs of
approximately HK$631,000 (Year ended 31 March 2022:
approximately HK$889,000), representing a decrease of
approximately 29.0% as compared with the Last Year. The
decrease in finance costs was mainly attributable to the
decrease in the interest on lease liabilities during the Year as
compared to the Last Year.

For both of the Year and the Last Year, the Group has reduced
the use of bills receivables discounting arrangement in its
sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related industrial
materials business. The bills discount charge recorded for both
of the Year and the Last Year were therefore at a minimum
level. The Group’s management is continuously and carefully
monitoring the Group's capital structure in order to utilize
its financial resources to meet its ongoing operational
requirements and business expansion. The Group may consider
making the discounting arrangement of bills receivables to
maintain the cash flows of the Group on a certain level when
appropriate and necessary.

Profit for the Year

In response to the unfavourable economic conditions and
persistent uncertainty of the economy outlook, the Group
has been implementing austerity measures to control the
operation cost and capital expenditure in order to reserve a
sufficient level of resources and capital. Also benefited from
the stable sales of the sourcing and sale of metal minerals and
related industrial materials business, the profit for the Year
increased from a loss of approximately HK$5,437,000 for the
Last Year to a profit of approximately HK$1,337,000 for the Year.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$1,842,000 whereas a loss of
approximately HK$5,452,000 was recorded in the Last Year.
This represented a basic profit per share of HK0.009 cent for
the Year, whereas the basic loss per share of HK0.026 cent was
recorded in the Last Year.

E#5EE (&)

=%

NEE > AEBREMEMAL631,0008 7T (&
EIETF=RB=+—HIEEFE : 4889,000%8
70) B R 4920.0% c BB R AR T EE
HERAEENHAEEENEBHE FEEMHLEEHE

\
Do

rEERLFEMEEE  ZAEBRRBREE
= BIRY) R ARRE T2 R 255D U SRS
R HNER AL RAFE R EFEMRERS
NRBMREEROENREKT AEEHEEE
RERBEEEAEB2EXRE UBHEM
BEREBVERENEEREREFRER A&
EoEERTEERVCERFHERREERNMIR
ZHUBERE—ERKFNIRESRE -

FRiEH
HESAHPEBER RS ESNFETH
B AEE—ERNEEEEENEERARE
AT UHERHNERRERKFE - SER
RERHESBREYREMITERE ZHEDE
RE AEEGHNHEFERIELNS5437,0008 7T
N E A5 R F) 491,337,000 7T ©

NEEARBDEE AELEF 541,842,000
T EEERREE18495,452,0008 75 AHE R A
FESREARRFL0.0098 1l T EEER T
FREAREIE40.026781 °
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group financed its operations mainly by cash generated
from its business activities and credit facilities provided
by banks. As at 31 March 2023, the Group had current
assets of approximately HK$1,759,370,000 (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$569,573,000), comprising cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$7,532,000 (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$9,018,000).

The Group’s current ratio, calculated based on current
assets of approximately HK$1,759,370,000 (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$569,573,000) over current liabilities
of approximately HK$1,315,745,000 (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$87,318,000), was 1.34, which was a decrease
when compared with the current ratio as at 31 March 2022 (31
March 2022: 6.52).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s trade payables amounted
to approximately HK$1,280,023,000 (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$45,840,000); trade receivables amounted
to approximately HK$1,383,652,000 (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$98,920,000).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s equity attributable to owners
of the Company decreased to approximately HK$493,206,000
(31 March 2022: approximately HK$531,077,000). No material
change has been recorded in equity attributable to owners of
the Company from 31 March 2022 up till 31 March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group continued to implement
a prudent financial management policy to protect the
shareholders’ interest of the Group. The management will
keep on exploring the feasibility of carrying out certain
financing activities, with the support from financial and
securities institutions and professional advisors, to meet its
ongoing operational requirements and business expansions
requirements.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW
FE 5[0l B8

BA 50l B8

TEBEE - MHEERRELSERE
NEBFEUERIOIMEEZRE MR
REZEEREAKLEERRHEES NI
CEE=HA=ZF+—H AEBZRBEEAY
1,759,370,0008c (ZE-ZZ“F=HA=+—H :
#9569,573,000/8 70) » BIERE MIRITHEHY
7,532,000 T (ZCE - F#=8B=+—08: 4
9,018,0003 7T) ©

BRI R ENE E491,759,370,0008 T (CT - _F=
B=+—H : £9569,573,00078 7T) R LURE B EL
1,315,745,0008 70 (ZCEZZF=B=+—H : 4
87,318,000/87T) 5T 8 » NEE Z RENEE 5134
ZEFR IR B _EZRA=+—HZHRHLER
(CEZTF=A=+—H:652)°

A S =FE=ZRB=+—H AEBZENLE

S ERIE4%91,280,023,00058 T (B - _F =
_+ H : 4945,840,000/87T) ; BN E S IEA L
1,383,652,000087C (ZEZZF=B=+—H: 4
98,920,00038 7T) ©

RIBEZ=F=B=+—8 > ARA%E AEHL

A EE E RS D F49493,206,00008 0 (B - 4
=ZA=+—8": ﬁ531 077,000%7T) cBEZE -
F=RB=+—HEZE-_=H£=F=+—Hli>

K@T%ﬁﬁ)\ﬁ’ifﬁf”“ﬁ%ﬂﬂték&iﬂ g

RIEZ=ZF=RA=+—H ' a5EREBRNE
BEYHFEERRUARERAERRR 2 Em -BEE
BRITHESHEREXBMZIETEER

SETETEERHZIUTN UEARFEEE
R EBIERE K
EANBRHEESEE

BE_Z_-—F-_R=T—HLEFE ~E@EH
BEAWBKRHESE.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23  &F ¥R 2022/23

13



14

BUSINESS REVIEW
F 5[0l B8

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Foreign Currency Management

The monetary assets and liabilities as well as business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried out and
conducted in HKS$, RMB and USD. The Group maintains a
strategy in its foreign currency risk management, primarily
by including the estimated exchange differences on currency
exposure in our pricing of metal minerals trade to minimize
the impact of foreign exchange risk on the Group’s profit. The
Group will enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to
hedge against the Group’s currency exposure if appropriate
and necessary. The management thus believes the current
level of bank balances, certain receivables and payables
denominated in RMB and USD expose the Group to a
manageable foreign currency risk. The management is paying
vigilant attention to the fluctuation of RMB and is constantly
and closely monitoring the foreign currency exposure. The
Group will further consider using any appropriate financial
derivatives to hedge against the Group’s currency risk and
manage its exposure.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had capital commitments
of RMB13,000,000, details of which are set out in the
announcement dated 3 February 2023 in respect of the
Investment Agreement (as defined therein) (31 March 2022:
nil).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 March 2022: nil).

Events After The Reporting Period

Based on the information currently available, the Directors
confirm that there has been no material adverse change in the
financial or trading position of the Group since the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXREREEAGREEFTR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Yu-shun, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Member of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Risk Management Committee

Aged 45, Mr. Ho has been an employee of the Company as its
deputy chief executive officer since 1 September 2022 and has
been appointed as an executive director with effect from 19
September 2022. He is also a director of several subsidiaries
of the Company. He has also been appointed as the chairman
of the Board and authorised representative of the Company
and re-designated as chief executive officer with effect from 1
October 2022.

Mr. Ho, graduated from Tamkang University with a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering in 2003 and further obtained
a master’s degree in business administration from the
National Cheng Kung University in 2005. He has over 10
years’ experience in the corporate banking and global trading
business. Before joining the Group, from August 2011 to
January 2016, he has worked as an assistant vice president
of Bank SinoPac. He then has served as a general manager
of Hong Kong Tian Yuan Manganese International Trade Co.,
Limited from January 2016 to August 2022, and also served
as a general manager of Taipei Tianyuan Metal International
Co., Ltd. from April 2019 to August 2022. Tian Yuan Manganese
International Trading Co., Ltd is amongst the top five suppliers
of the Group.

Ms. Sun Le

Aged 35, joined the Company as an executive director in
November 2019. Ms. Sun is also a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Ms. Sun graduated from the Self-taught higher education
examination (55 H B B2 %5)in Tourism Management
from the Northeast Normal University (88 J6EM#E A 22) in 2011,
Ms. Sun has served as the senior management for several
trading companies in the People’s Republic of China, and she
has accumulated solid management experience in the trading
business sector.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEAEREEAEREFE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Sun Di

Aged 37, joined the Company as a non-executive director
in September 2019. Ms. Sun is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Sun obtained a Bachelor’s degree in German with a minor
in international economics and trade from the Beijing Foreign
Studies University in July 2009.

Ms. Sun has extensive experience in accounting, auditing and
risk management in the finance and investment industry. She
had worked in KPMG Huazhen, an international CPA firm, for
the period from October 2011 to January 2018. Ms. Sun is a
non-practicing member of The Chinese Institution of Certified
Public Accountants.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee and Member of the Risk
Management Committee and the Nomination Committee
Aged 54, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director and has been appointed as Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee (re-
designated as Chairman in October 2020) and member of the
Risk Management Committee and the Nomination Committee
in February 2020.

Mr. Cheung is a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is a Certified Practicing Accountant
of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung currently serves as an executive
director of Silk Road Logistics Holdings Limited (stock code:
988), an independent non-executive director of Boyaa
Interactive International Limited (stock code: 434) and China
Development Bank International Investment Limited (stock
code 1062).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Cheung served as an independent non-executive director
of Guoan International Limited (stock code: 143) from 2020
to 2021, Asia Television Holdings Limited (stock code: 707)
from 2016 to 2019, an independent non-executive director
of China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited (delisted
in December 2019, stock code prior to the delisting: 6863) in
2017, and as the chief financial officer of China Zenix Auto
International Limited (OTC: ZXAIY) from 2014 to 2022. Mr.
Cheung obtained a bachelor’s degree in social science from
the University of Hong Kong in 1991, a master’s degree in
accounting from the Curtin University of Technology (currently
known as Curtin University) in 1997 and a master degree
in science from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2002. The companies indicated above with stock
code are listed in United States of America and Hong Kong.

Mr. Kwong Wing Ho, Member of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Risk Management Committee

Aged 50, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director and has been appointed as member
of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committed,
the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Management
Committee in October 2022. Mr. Kwong, has more than 25
years experience in the legal field. He obtained a degree of
bachelor of laws in 1995 and subsequently a postgraduate
certificates in laws in 1997 from the City University of Hong
Kong. He further obtained a degree of master of laws from the
University of Liverpool in 1996. He qualified as a solicitor in
Hong Kong in 1999 and has been appointed as a civil celebrant
of marriages since 2007.

Mr. Kwong has been a consultant of Messrs. S. H. Chou & Co.
since 4 July 2022 and has been appointed as an assistant
manager of the Hong Kong Insurance Authority since 9 August
2022. He was a consultant of Messrs. Cheng, Yeung & Co. from
March 2015 to November 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEAEREEAEREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Tang Kin Nam, Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the Risk Management Committee and Member of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 56, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director and has been appointed as Chairman of
the Nomination Committee (re-designated as Chairman in
September 2022) and the Risk Management Committee (re-
designated as Chairman in September 2022) and member of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee in
October 2021.

Mr. Tang obtained a Bachelor of Arts from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1991 and a master degree in
China Economic Law from the University of Beijing in 1999. He
qualified as a chartered secretary of United Kingdom Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries in 1995.

Mr. Tang has more than 30 years experience in corporate
governance and executive management. Mr. Tang had
previously worked for an international Certified Public
Accountant firm where he had specialized in advising clients
on corporate and private trust structures. He then joined TMF
Group in 2000 and became the director and regional head of
international incorporations global business development,
Asia Pacific of TMF Group. Mr. Tang left TMF Group in 2017
to establish Maystar Corporate Solutions Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, to deliver
consultancy and advisory services to clients in relation to their
corporate restructuring, incorporation of overseas companies
and provision of company secretary services.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Wing Suen, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative

Aged 43, joined the Group’s finance and account department
of the Group since June 2022 and has been re-designated
as Financial Controller in November 2022. Ms. Ng obtained a
degree of Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting
and a degree of Master of Corporate Governance from The
Hong Kong Metropolitan University (formerly The Open
University of Hong Kong). She is a chartered secretary, a
chartered governance professional and a fellow member
of The Chartered Governance Institute and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute. She is also a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Ms. Ng
has more than 20 years experience in accounting, auditing,
treasury, financial controlling and compliance. Prior to joining
the Group, she had worked at several firms of certified public
accountants and listed companies.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ERTHS

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing and sale of
metal minerals and related industrial materials, and production
and sale of industrial products.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” section and “Business Review” section
set out on pages 7 to 9 and pages 10 to 14 of this annual report
respectively. These discussions form part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 59 to 60 of this annual report
respectively.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting ("AGM”) of the Company will
be held on 17 August 2023. A notice convening the annual
general meeting will be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company in the manner required by the Listing Rules in due
course.

EEMAREFEERE T _=—F=-RF=+—
AEFEZFRREERGEMBRER

FTEXRBREFOE

KRB/ —RREERAE -HINBE AT EEHR
ERBERHETBIEY B IR UKRE
EREETHEBER-

BREATER (FBEH55622F) MRSFAREL
EEEBNE—TmAkON (BEAEEME
HIZEBEIEERAR B BREEFEGZ UK
s A ERE VN ENSEEHMNEBRAE
BB EHIRMARRERNTRNEH) > D
AR AERE7IZIEZEERS I RFE10E14
Bz T¥BOE M- 2L mBmAiREmN—
B o

EERDIK

FEERBE_T_ZF=-R=-+—HLEEFEZ
EEDHENAFREIZORE 2 BmRK
FEREkHEMEERER

EFETERRBE_Z_=ZF=RB=+—H
HFEEZEARE (CEZ2F 1 H) -

RERBFARE
AATRFBEAY (REBEAG) IR
—ZEN\A+tAST BHRRBEATHE

ERERFRZEITRVREENSATETFTERER
o

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23  &F ¥R 2022/23

19



20

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFETRS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attending and voting at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held at 17 August
2023, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, 17/F., Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 11
August 2023. The register of members of the Company will
be closed from 14 August 2023 to 17 August 2023, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group, is set out on page 172 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 24(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the year are set out in note 24(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company has no distributable reserve
calculated (2022: Nil).

DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organisation by the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2023 is nil (2022: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ho Yu-shun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 19 September 2022 and appointed
as Chairman and re-designated as Chief Executive Officer
on 1 October 2022)

Ms. Sun Le

Mr. Sin Lik Man
(resigned on 30 September 2022 and
with effect from 1 October 2022)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Sun Di

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Mr. Tang Kin Nam
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho
(appointed on 18 October 2022)
Mr. Wang Ye
(retired on 16 September 2022)

In accordance with bye-law no. 86 of the Company’s Bye- laws
and code provision B2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Ho Yu-shun, and Mr. Kwong Wing Ho will hold office until
the AGM and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENT

Details of the directors’ emolument during the year are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this report of the directors, no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company, or any entity connected with
any director of the Company, had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFETRS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EENRM  HRARMDREEEZE
mRRE

RIEBEZ=F=B=1+—HB ARAZEEKE
SITBAERAREHEEREZE (EERES
RERERBIZEXVER) Z R ~ 18RAI (D K EHEsE
BEAAABRBESKAEHRAEI2FEFE
2B MAFMGEEZ BE RN A HIRE L TR
A EHETAERETESRZ ZRETH]
(TRZESTR) ZREMABAMEG KRB KB AP
ZRERRBWT

REQXBRORERRBZEFE

As at 31 March 2023
RZEZ=%=B=1+—H

Approximate

percentage of

the Company'’s

issued

Capacity and Number of Number of share capital

Name of director nature of interests shares held  share options held Total interests (Note 1)

EERTF

BETREZ

BMAaEaL

ESfth S kiEHEE FrfsiRin 8B FsERESE R (1)

Ms. Sun Le Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 5,040,000,000 - 5,040,000,000 23.90%
Y o FERIEE 2 B (H222)

Note 1: The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share
capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2023.

Note 2: These shares were beneficially owned by Sheen Success
Investments Limited which was wholly owned by Sun
Le. Accordingly, Sun Le is deemed to be interested in
5,040,000,000 shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Biatr D AR RBEBTRAZBAEDLEIREBERR
BN _=F=H=+—H=221,084,072,140
PR D st & -

Ktat2 o ZE 1D HSheen Success Investments Limited 2
#= 75 > MSheen Success Investments LimitedFd
HREe2ERF AL REBEDFRBERG 12
L4345 13 %3 51.5,040,000,0008% B 19 R #E 5 He 2 ©
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COMPETING INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CLOSE ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 March 2023, none of the Directors or
any of their respective close associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) is considered to have interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests, which is required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on
27 August 2017 expired on 26 August 2022. Further
announcement(s) will be made in respect of any new share
option schemes are to be adopted by the Company when and
if necessary.

During the period and up till 26 August 2022, no share options
under the Share Option Scheme were granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed and no share option remain outstanding.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the above sections headed “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or their spouse or minor children had any rights to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights during the year.
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EFETRS

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE

SFO

As at 31 March 2023, the following shareholders having
interests of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

REBEFRIERMETIREZRR

EmkkE

N TEC=ZF=ZRB=1+—H RELXRTHEIEF
FHRG IR B SE336IRFIEE 2 B m B so MAraCE:
TNIRREA T NECHITRAS NI R

RAERBRBZEE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares held the Company’s
Capacity and as at 31 March issued share capital
Name of shareholder nature of interest 2023 (Note 3)
ERAE
RIBZ= ERTREZ
=B=+—H BB AL
RRE 2iE BiphEZNE PRl & E (#7723)
Sun Le Interest of controlled corporation 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
B PRIEHIEE 2 # 5,040,000,000 (#z#1)
Sheen Success Investments Limited Beneficial owner 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
EEEBA 5,040,000,000 (#5£1)
Zhou Qiuhong Interest of controlled corporation 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
B AL PRIEHIEE 2 # 3,215,322,140 (#f&#2)
Ying Sheng Investment Co., Ltd Beneficial owner 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
BHEBA 3,215,322,140 (#f5#2)
Notes: Mzt
1. These shares were beneficially owned by Sheen Success 1. %% f% 17 Sheen Success Investments Limited &
Investments Limited which was wholly owned by Sun A > MSheen Success Investments LimitedFH
Le. Accordingly, Sun Le was deemed to be interested in HREDERAR FHib RIBFES KIBERG 2
5,040,000,000 shares under the SFO. 24385350 7 125,040,000,000% A 19 R A 1 &5 o
2. These shares were beneficially owned by Ying Sheng 2. % E B2 1D FYing Sheng Investment Co., Ltd S 7
Investment Co., Ltd which was wholly owned by Zhou A > MYing Sheng Investment Co., LtdF A T4 2
Qiuhong. Accordingly, Zhou Qiuhong was deemed to be BEES [ RIFFES RAERG > BRAIE
interested in 3,215,322,140 shares under the SFO. RAF3,215,322,140R B 5 P HER o
3. The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share 3. EEARBBETRAZBMANB DL REAR

capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2023
as required pursuant to section 324 of the SFO. Such other
relevant interest or short positions, if notified to the Company,
would have to be recorded in the said register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO.

BN _=F=H=+—H221,084,072,140
RERG IR BT & o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions as disclosed in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements did not fall under the
scope of “Connected Transactions” or “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2023, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the applicable laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-laws provided that the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and other officers
of the Company during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report
of directors and in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2023.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
March 2023.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for
approximately 90.6% and approximately 99.6% respectively of
the Group’s total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
92.6% and approximately 98.3% respectively of the Group's
total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or any
shareholders which to the best knowledge of the Directors who
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The planet Earth and its various resources maintain the life of
all creatures and humans. In the face of dwindling resources,
the Group strongly believes that sustainable development is
the only way out. Therefore, we shoulder the responsibility
of environmental protection through strict compliance with
laws and regulations related to emission. Our uncompromising
commitment to integrate the concept of environmental
protection into the production system is also reflected by the
operation mode of the Waste Recycling Company and a system
for the management of environment, air emission, water
resources, soil, waste and energy.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognize that employees, customers and
business partners are the keys to the sustainable development
of the Group. The Group is committed to building a close and
caring relationship with its employees and business partners
and improving the quality of services to the customers.

With employees being its cornerstone for success and key
to the development of core competency, the Group makes
every effort to ensure its operation is compliant with laws
and regulations related to employee benefits. We also
protect employees’ rights and benefits and provide them
with comprehensive welfare, training and development
opportunities for talent retention. The Group also stays
connected with its customers and suppliers and has ongoing
communication with the customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and
physical meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC while the
ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The Group’s establishment and operations
shall accordingly comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2023
and up to the date of this annual report, the Group'’s operation
has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong in all material respects.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a total of about 122
employees and directors (As at 31 March 2022: 134). The
Group's staff costs, including directors’ remuneration,
amounted to approximately HK$22,646,000 (31 March 2022:
approximately HK$25,489,000).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their
competence, performance, experience and prevailing market
rate. Other employee benefits included provident fund scheme,
medical insurance, subsidised training programme, share
option scheme as well as discretionary bonus.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
(continued)

The determination of emoluments of the Directors had
taken into consideration of their respective responsibilities
and contribution to the Company with reference to market
conditions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31 March 2023,
the Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman),
Mr. Tang Kin Nam and Mr. Kwong Wing Ho (appointed on 18
October 2022).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except for code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, which will be
discussed in section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” in the Corporate Governance Report, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company'’s total issued shares is held by the public
as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Based on the information currently available, the Directors
confirm that there has been no material adverse change in the
financial or trading position of the Group since the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acted as auditor of the Company and
audited the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2023.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Yu-shun
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 June 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXERRS

The Board is committed to uphold a high standard in
corporate governance. The Board considers effective corporate
governance is essential to protect shareholders’ interests and
enhance stakeholders’ value. Moreover, the Board is of the
view that good corporate governance will further enhance the
value and culture of the Group, which is to carry out business
activities while minimizing the impact on the environment and
to develop and implement green technology more effectively
and comprehensively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. On 30 September 2022, Mr.
Sin Lik Man resigned as chairman of the Board, chief executive
officer and executive director of the Company with effective
from 1 October 2022. Thereafter, Mr. Ho Yu-shun, an executive
director of the Company, has been appointed as chairman
of the Board and has been re-designated as chief executive
officer to fill the vacancy arising from the resignation of Mr. Sin
Lik Man with effect from 1 October 2022. Since then, Mr. Ho
Yu-shun has been serving as both the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company.

Although for the year ended 31 March 2023, the positions
of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated,
the responsibilities between the two positions were clearly
separated. The Board believes that such structure helps to
provide consistent leadership, facilitates effective business
planning and implementation of long-term business strategies.

In addition, all major decisions of the Company are made
only after discussion among Board members and appropriate
members of the Board committees and the heads of
departments. The power and authority are not concentrated
in one individual. Moreover, the Board is composed of
experienced members who are not involved in the day to day
management of the Company. They are in a position to and do
provide independent opinions effectively. The Board considers
that in the circumstances having the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer played by the same individual would not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company.

The Directors will review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and compliance with the CG Code from time to time.
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The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report for
the year ended 31 March 2023, which contains the Company'’s
ESG information in compliance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules, will be
published in the Company’s and Stock Exchange’s websites at
the same time as the publication of this report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors, all of
them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
March 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management,
leadership and control of the Group. The Board’s primary
responsibilities are to formulate long-term corporate strategies,
to establish policies and plans, to oversee management of the
Group, to evaluate the performance of the Group, to assess
the achievement of targets set by the Board periodically
and to review and approve annual and interim results and
other significant financial and operational matters under
the leadership of the chairman of the Group. The Board is
directly accountable to the shareholders of the Company. The
responsibility of day-to-day management and operations of
the Group are delegated to the senior management of the
Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors including two executive directors, namely Mr. Ho
Yu-shun (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Sun
Le, one non-executive director, namely Ms. Sun Di, and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai
Lam, Mr. Kwong Wing Ho and Mr. Tang Kin Nam.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEEERBS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Directors are considered to have a balance of skill and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company.

Changes in the composition of the Board, audit committee
(“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and risk management committee (“Risk
Management Committee”) of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2023 and up to the date of this annual report are
detailed on pages 34 to 45 of this annual report.

The section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” sets out the biographical details of the current
Directors and senior management from pages 15 to 18 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the aforesaid, none of the
Directors has any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between any members of the Board.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company (“Independent Non-executive
Directors”) as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent under the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction to each newly appointed director on his/
her first appointment in order to enable him/her to have
appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are continually updated on
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. The Company has provided timely technical
updates, including the briefing on the amendments on
the Listing Rules and the news release published by the
Stock Exchange to the Directors. Continuing briefing and
professional development for Directors are arranged where
necessary.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information, including monthly Board updates from the
management, regular reports from the Board committees and
briefings on significant legal, regulatory or accounting matters
affecting the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2023, seven regular Board
meetings and the 2022 annual general meeting (“2022 AGM")
were held. The attendance records of each director is set out as
follows:

EFTEEMRRRE

BE_E=-F-A=+-—BLEE #E=9g
BOTTREHEER S _ERFHAFARE
(T ZFERREFAE) - SEBZHES
REHWT

Number of attendance

HERH
2022
Annual General
Board meetings Meeting
Name of Director EENSH EREER RERBERE
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Ho Yu-shun RS EEE
(appointed on 19 September 2022 and R —EZ—FNH+NHESER
appointed as Chairman and re-designated RIE- —F+H—HEZFE
as Chief Executive Officer on 1 October 2022)  Z/E L5 A1THAZ ) 5/5 -
Ms. Sun Le 7Y Sen 717 171
Mr. Sin Lik Man HRIE
(resigned on 30 September 2022 and (P ZEZZFANF=+HFFE
with effect from 1 October 2022) H-E__#F1+A—-HELH) 2/2 11
Non-executive Director FERITER
Ms. Sun Di BBzt 717 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BiERITES
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REMAEE 7/7 171
Mr. Tang Kin Nam WEmELE 7/7 1”1
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BB E
(appointed on 18 October 2022) (RZEZZF+A+/\HEZE) 3/3 -
Mr. Wang Ye FEEE
(retired on 16 September 2022) (R B ZFAF+HEMA) 11 171

The 2022 AGM of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2022 was held on 16 September 2022. The forthcoming annual
general meeting ("AGM") of the Company will be held on 17
August 2023 (meeting agenda will be provided in the Notice
of AGM to be issued afterwards). Our Directors, company
secretary and other senior executives of the Company will
attend the AGM together with our external auditors to answer
any questions from the shareholders. All Directors treasure the
opportunity to canvass the views of the shareholders of the
Company at the AGM held annually.

RNARBE_E-__F=-A=+—HIEENZ
T _EREEFERGER_ZEZ_FNAB+X
BET - ARNAEERREFAE (RERBFKX
DR _E_ZFENA+EHET (TEZE
RRENHEBZEHZREBEARGEL) - ARTE
EREMEBEUREMERTHRABEREXAT
SNERZEEMBHEREBEBEAT WEIZREN
TARM - 2RBREEHERNEFLTHRES

FRE LHATLDRERRIE S -
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has
complied with the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
except for the deviation from Code Provision C.2.1 for the year
described below.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual. On 30
September 2022, Mr. Sin Lik Man resigned as chairman of the
Board, chief executive officer and executive director of the
Company with effective from 1 October 2022. Thereafter, Mr.
Ho Yu-shun has been appointed as chairman of the Board and
has been re-designated as chief executive officer to fill the
vacancy arising from the resignation of Mr. Sin Lik Man with
effective from 1 October 2022. Since then, Mr. Ho Yu-shun
has been serving as both of the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company.

Although for the year ended 31 March 2023, the positions
of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated,
the responsibilities between the two positions were clearly
separated. The Board believes that such structure helps to
provide consistent leadership, facilitates effective business
planning and implementation of long-term business strategies.

In addition, all major decisions of the Company are made
only after discussion among Board members and appropriate
members of the Board committees and the heads of
departments. The power and authority are not concentrated
in one individual. Moreover, the Board is composed of
experienced members who are not involved in the day to day
management of the Company. They are in a position to and do
provide independent opinions effectively. The Board considers
that in the circumstances having the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer played by the same individual would not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors is appointed for a term of twelve-month
period which automatically renews for successive twelve-
month periods unless terminated by either party by six
months’ notice in writing. All of the non-executive Director
and independent Non-executive Directors are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three
years at the AGMs of the Company in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Newly appointed Directors will receive guidelines and
reference materials to enable them to familiarise with the
Group's business operations and Board’s policies. The Company
is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. Each
Director is briefed and updated from time to time to ensure
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the governance policies of the Group. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms
of reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at
31 March 2023, the Remuneration Committee comprises
four members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman), Mr. Tang
Kin Nam, Mr. Kwong Wing Ho (appointed on 18 October 2022)
and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Ho Yu-shun (appointed
on 1 October 2022).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all the directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration; determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive directors. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing a set of formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The full terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The Remuneration Committee met four time during the year
ended 31 March 2023 to review the remuneration packages for
Directors. The attendance records of each member is set out as
follows:

EEERH®S

#HMEEE (@)

FNEES ITBHEANARAEBEERS
REEBZFHHRREBRAESIRERE
EEENNTEEkREEE 2FMEFSE I
MFRTESHWNESTRERR -FINE
EENEERUEAKRAEBRHEZRRERF UEE
BRAFF N BRI 48 FE R B W E B EW
R BMBEABEREHART ZFHEN > A RAFH R
Z2REARETRBRIR UL TIHE G KR T mmE
E-HNEETHEEE L2 X NARE K
RPATHALEE RS o

BE_Z_-—F-_R=T—HLEFE HFWNEE
EETTHREREUBTHESZHFWNETE M
BZHFEBEREIWOT

Number of
attendance
Name of member RE S HERH
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman) REMEE (F/E) 4/4
Mr. Tang Kin Nam BREm A 4/4
Mr. Ho Yu-shun 2Bk E
(appointed on 1 October 2022) (R —E__—F+HA—HEZFT) 2/2
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BB K &S
(appointed on 18 October 2022) R—FE-_—F+H+/HEZT) -
Mr. Sin Lik Man ISR E
(resigned on 30 September 2022 and (R —ZEZ —FAHF=+HEFHE
with effect from 1 October 2022) HE-E__F+A—HELN 3/3
Mr. Wang Ye FEEE
(retired on 16 September 2022) (R—EZ_FAB+NHEFE 1/1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of
reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31
March 2023, the Nomination Committee comprises four
members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman) (re-designated
as Chairman on 19 September 2022), Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
and Mr. Kwong Wing Ho (appointed on 18 October 2022) and
one Executive Director, namely Mr. Ho Yu-shun (appointed on 1
October 2022).

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, evaluation of board composition,
assessment of the independence of independent non-
executive directors and management of the Board succession.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the“Diversity
Policy”) in September 2013 which set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based
on range of diversity perspectives, which would include but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) in January 2019 to fulfill the duties and
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee as provided in its
terms of reference.

(a)

(b)

Recommended candidates

The Nomination Committee shall consider any and all
candidates recommended as nominees for directors
to it by any directors or shareholders; provided that
in the case of shareholder recommendations, such
recommendations comply with all applicable notice
requirements set forth in the Company’s Bye-laws,
the procedures for a shareholder’s nomination to be
properly brought before a general meeting and the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee may also
consider, in its sole discretion, any and all candidates
recommended as nominees for directors to it by any
source.

Desired qualifications, qualities and skills

The Nomination Committee shall endeavour to find
individuals of high integrity who have a solid record of
accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess
the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively
represent the best interests of all shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise
good judgment, to provide the commitment to
enhancing shareholder value, practical insights and
diverse perspectives. Candidates will also be assessed
in the context of the then-current composition of the
board, the operating requirements of the Company
and the long-term interests of all shareholders.
In conducting this assessment, the Nomination
Committee will, in connection with its assessment
and recommendation of director candidates, consider
diversity and such other factors as it deems appropriate
given the then-current and anticipated future needs of
the board and the Company, and to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills
on the board. The Nomination Committee may also
consider such other factors as it may deem are in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
above diversity perspectives, taking into account the
Company’s business model and needs, are set out in a
Diversity Policy.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(c)

(d)

Independence

The Nomination Committee shall ensure that at least
one-third of the board members (or such other number
of the members of the board as prescribed by the
Listing Rules from time to time) meet the definition of
independent non-executive director. The Nomination
Committee shall annually assess each nominee for
independent non-executive director by reviewing
any potential conflicts of interest that he or she and
their immediate family members (as defined in the
Listing Rules) may have, based on the criteria for
independence set forth in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
A retiring independent non-executive director who has
served the board for a period of nine consecutive years
or more is eligible for nomination by the board to stand
for re-election at a general meeting provided that he or
she is still considered independent by the board.

Nominee evaluation process

The Nomination Committee will consider as a
candidate any director who has indicated his or her
willingness to stand for re-election and any other
person who is recommended by any shareholders.
The Nomination Committee may also undertake its
own search process for candidates and may retain the
services of professional firms or other third parties
to assist in identifying and evaluating potential
nominees. The Nomination Committee may use any
process it deems appropriate for the purpose of
evaluating candidates which is consistent with those
set forth in its terms of reference, the Company’s Bye-
laws, the corporate governance policy and the policy
described herein; provided that the process used for
evaluating a nominee for each election or appointment
of directors shall be substantially similar and under
no circumstances shall the Nomination Committee
evaluate nominees recommended by a shareholder
pursuant to a process that is substantially different than
that used for other nominees for the same election or
appointment of directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(e)

Nomination procedures

The company secretary shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from board members, if any, for
consideration prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by board members. For filling
a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations for the board’s consideration
and approval. For proposing candidates to stand
for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the board for its
consideration and recommendation. Until the issue of
the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall
not assume that they have been proposed by the board
to stand for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the board to stand for election at a
general meeting, a circular will be sent to shareholders.
The circular will set out the names, brief biographies
(including qualifications and relevant experience),
and any other information, as required pursuant to
applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the proposed
candidates. A shareholder can serve a notice to the
board of directors or the company secretary within
the lodgement period of its intention to propose a
resolution to elect a certain person as a director in
accordance with the relevant procedures posted on the
Company’s website. The particulars of the candidates
so proposed will be provided to all shareholders
for information by way of announcement and/or
supplementary circular. A candidate is allowed to
withdraw his or her candidature at any time before the
general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
board of directors or the company secretary. The board
shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting. Shareholder proposed resolutions
shall take the same form as the resolutions proposed
for the candidates recommended by the board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the board composition and
independence of independent non-executive directors,
and considered the suitability of those retiring directors
standing for re-election at the next annual general meeting
as well as the need for a director succession plan. The
Nomination Committee also reviewed the Nomination Policy
and the Diversity Policy and discussed the objectives set for
implementing the latter, and noted that those objectives had
been achieved. The Nomination Committee concluded that the
board composition should continue unchanged.

The Nomination Committee met four times during the
year ended 31 March 2023 to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board; assess the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company; review
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-election of directors. The attendance records of each
member is set out as follows:

RBZET (@)

BE_Z_—F-A=+—HLEFE RELZEE
ERNEFE CAANABIFNTESE 2B
M UTEERTERIRBEFAG LEEEEZ
BAEEERE B UKESEEINEFEZHE
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BE_Z_—F-A=+—HLEFE RELZEE
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ZEREEEEFHERIMNESRHEEREER
Ro-BMBEZHEBREIIMT :

Number of
attendance
Name of member MEHEH HERE
Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman) WEmLE (F/EF)
(re-designated as Chairman (RZEZZFAA+NHEFERZFE
on 19 September 2022) 4/4
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam SRE M A 4/4
Mr. Ho Yu-shun Mgt
(appointed on 1 October 2022) R —E__—F+H—HEZF) 2/2
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BB & A
(appointed on 18 October 2022) (R-—EFE_—F+H+/HEZT) -
Mr. Sin Lik Man KX E
(resigned on 30 September 2022 and (KRB ZFANF=+HEFTE
with effect from 1 October 2022) BE-E__F+5—HELX) 3/3
Mr. Wang Ye FERE
(retired on 16 September 2022) (R—EZ_—F B+ NHEE) 2/2
AUDIT COMMITTEE BI%ZEEY

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31 March 2023,
the Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman),
Mr. Tang Kin Nam and Mr. Kwong Wing Ho (appointed on 18
October 2022).
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued) BEZZE% (@
The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for assisting the BTERZEZESTEAEWNESTSEAVKEERK
Board in applying financial reporting and internal control P93 B 1% /R ﬁ'J&ﬁiﬁ@ﬁV%(Eﬁ”&%@?SE@%ﬁ

principles and in maintaining an appropriate relationship fFZ-BZZEGNCERTESTI 2 LEE LR
with the Company’s auditor. The Audit Committee is also A5’ M EIZ R ERE 1@$$@WZ¢¥E/&E\
delegated with the corporate governance function of the HREE - EREZEGTRHEER 2 XAINER
Board to monitor, procure and manage corporate governance SRS FR4H UL E R o

compliance within the Group. The full terms of reference of the

Audit Committee are available on the Company’s and the Stock

Exchange’s websites.

The Audit Committee met three times during the year ended #HE_EL_=F=-FB=+—HILLEE BERZZEE
31 March 2023 and the attendance records of each memberis ERITT=ZRNEH ISHEZHEBREHIAOT :
set out as follows:
Number of
attendance
Name of member RE S HERH
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman) REMEE (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Tang Kin Nam BREm A 3/3
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BB K &S
(appointed on 18 October 2022) (R—E_—F+H+/NHEZT) 11
Mr. Wang Ye FEELE
(retired on 16 September 2022) (RZEZ_FAH+NHEFE) 2/2

The summary of work performed by the Audit Committee MW TAAXFEBEZEZEEEITZ TIERM
during the year:

. reviewed and discussed the audited financial - BRI mAEEBEE S "F=H
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March =T —HLEFEZEEZVBREK LE
2022 and recommended to the Board for approval; BREFETUHE;

. reviewed the corporate governance compliance with - BRTECEERFEETREERTAZ
the CG Code and the disclosure requirements for the BRREEEARSZHERT ;

corporate governance report;

. reviewed and discussed the unaudited financial - ERETwmAEREE_ST __FNA
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 =+HERBE Z RKEZIHBREK > L
September 2022 and recommended to the Board for BEREFFTLULE;
approval;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

reviewed and discussed with management and auditor
of the Company the accounting policies and practices
which may affect the Group and the scope of the audit;

reviewed the effectiveness and sufficiency of the
Company'’s financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control system of the Group;

reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the Company’s auditor; and
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor; and

engaged a professional consultant to conduct an
internal audit review and risk assessment of the Group.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 March 2023, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee with specific written terms
of reference was established by the Company on 23 November
2015. As at 31 March 2023, the Risk Management Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman) (re-designated as Chairman on 19
September 2022), Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam and Mr. Kwong Wing
Ho (appointed on 18 October 2022) and one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Ho Yu-shun (appointed on 1 October 2022).

The Risk Management Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the general goals and fundamental policies of the
risk and compliance management, internal control and risk
management and internal audit functions of the Group and
made recommendations to the Board on the same. The full
terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are
available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (continued) [E[EEIEZEE (48)

The Risk Management Committee met twice during the HE_Z_=F=-A=+—HLFEE ARKEE
year ended 31 March 2023 to identify risk on the Group’s ZEER{ITTMREH > URMPIFEBREE L2
operation; to review and recommend to the Board the interim  J& [ ; 25 55 & % B 12 K 79 20 B 0 A9 P BA A% 5 3R
review reports on risk management and internal control. The & > TrittHEBEFSFLHERER -{IMB 2 H

attendance of each member is set out as follows: BIERESIMT
Number of
attendance
Name of member REH4 HERH
Mr. Tang Kin Nam (Chairman) WEmLtE (FE)
(re-designated as Chairman on (RZEZZFAA+ N HERTEEE
19 September 2022) 2/2
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REMIAEE 2/2
Mr. Ho Yu-shun A2t
(appointed on 1 October 2022) (KRB ZZF+H—HEZE) 1/1
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BB &
(appointed on 18 October 2022) R-BZ—FA1A+HESE) 11
Mr. Wang Ye FEELE
(retired on 16 September 2022) (KRB ZFAF+NHEM) 1/1

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION % BB B ¥ B EM AN <&

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about HBAREARATIIEZEMHAATHE_ZS =
their responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial =B Z=Z+—HI-FEHFEGHMBRRZSEZHl
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 is set out in the ~ A AFEIRFS2E58E ~ MBI EENIR S — &
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 52 to A °

58 of this annual report.

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable to RZAREER > BN REN A ZEMEE S5
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”), the auditor of the Company: (B8 StEBAAERAR (HEEE) 2 &

JZE Lo
HKs’000
FET

Fees for audit services (Note a) ZERBZER (Wta) 700
Fees for non-audit services (Note b) FERBRBZER (Batb) 180
Total w5t 880
Notes: Mz -
(a) The audit services provided by Crowe. (a) ZBREHBEE EER Mo
(b) The non-audit services provided by Crowe. (b) JEB AR R E SRR ¢
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

In order to establish the duties and responsibilities of the Board
in performing its corporate governance functions, the Board
has delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee which
include the following:

(a) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibilities for maintaining
adequate systems of risk management and internal control to
safeguard the Group's assets and shareholders’ interests. The
systems, including a defined management structure with limits
of authority, is designed to help achieve business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use, and maintain
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and for publication. The systems
are set up to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement of financial statements or
lost of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

Effective risk management is essential in the long-term
growth and sustainability of the Group’s businesses. The Board
monitors the risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis. It evaluates and determines the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives. An annual review of effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems has
been conducted. The annual review ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage the
significant risks of the Group is embedded in the Group’s
normal business operations. Organisational structure
is well established with clearly defined authorities and
responsibilities, and the Group has developed various risk
management and internal control policies and procedures for
each business unit to follow. Business units are responsible
for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated
with their respective units regularly. The results of assessment
are reported to management which subsequently assesses
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides remedial plan and
monitors the progress of rectification with the assistance of
the head of the business units. The results and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal controls have been
reported to the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Guidelines have been provided to the directors, officers,
management and relevant staff in handling and disseminating
sensitive and confidential inside information with due care.
Only personnel at appropriate level can have access to
sensitive and confidential inside information.

In view of the Company’s businesses and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Company has engaged an external consultant to
conduct review on the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems to identify and evaluate significant risks of the
business operations. The Board believes that the involvement
of the external consultant could enhance the objectivity and
transparency of evaluation process. The external consultant
has conducted an annual review to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems for the year ended 31 March 2023
in accordance with the requirements under code provision
D.2 of the CG Code, and according to the scope of review
agreed and approved by the Audit Committee. The review
covered all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and also material risks relating to ESG
matters.

After the review, a report of findings and recommendations
for improvement in relation to the systems has been provided
to the Audit Committee and management. The internal audit
report has been approved by the Audit Committee and
management is required to establish remedial plans and take
required actions to rectify those internal control deficiencies
identified according to the respective risk level and priorities.
Subsequent review will be performed by the external
consultant to monitor the implementation of those agreed
recommendations and to report the results of the follow up
review to the Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Mr. Hui King Tat ceased
to be the company secretary of the Company on 1 August
2022. Ms. Ng Wing Suen (“Ms. Ng”) was then appointed as
the company secretary of the Company on 1 August 2022.
The biographical details of Ms. Ng are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” on page 18 of this annual report. Ms. Ng has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirements
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
March 2023.

[ B B R R ERER 4% (48)
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

According to bye-law no. 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to:

(a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting;

(b) circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled
to have notice of any general meeting send to them
any statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less
than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week
before the meeting in case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company

According to bye-law no. 88 of the Company’s Bye-laws, no
person other than a Director retiring at the general meeting
of the Company shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting of the Company unless a notice signed by
a shareholder of the Company (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting of the Company for which such notice is given of
his/her intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong or at the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgement of such notice(s)
shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns in writing to the Company Secretary of the Company
at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1102, 11th
Floor, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted its dividend policy, which allows
the shareholders of the Company to share the profits of the
Company whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group's
future growth. According to the Company’s dividend policy,
in addition to the final dividends, the Company may declare
interim dividends or special dividends from time to time.

According to the Company’s dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before proposing and declaring
dividends:

. the Group’s general financial condition;

. the Group’s working capital and debt level;
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
the Group’s liquidity position;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

. future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group’s lenders;

the general market conditions;

the general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

. any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Laws of the Bermuda,
the Bye-laws of the Company and any applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Company’s dividend policy will be reviewed from time
to time by the Board and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and
other stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting,
the annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars and the Company’s website at www.npegroup.com.hk.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner. Investors may write directly to the Company
at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1102, 11th
Floor, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, the Company has adopted the new Bye-laws
as its constitutional documents. For details, please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 14 July 2022 and the poll results
announcement dated 19 September 2022 respectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERH®S

Hi lu\ﬁﬁ (II\E)
. REBZREMESTHKMR ;

. FABDRFEAERE AT ZRE
DRSS

BH &

. ARREBRREBES FHEB R
RERBRZAIBES
. & BIBERENN Z AR SR 5

. —BRBR;

C ERCSERRNURIEESAREEBY
M RRRMRRZ A ABRIBEE ;
R

. EFERAERcENEMEER-

ARBRBERRKNRETABTAREEZE E
AEMRBIU R ERBRER R RERAEHZ
EIFRS

EFERTRBHNEARTREBE > W ARETE
EEEEMBREEASEERZIRE

KREERE

AABEMEERKRR - REEREMARIERE
2HERUZEBRRB - EFREERFIEFEKX
B -FHREPHRS - BE QM - BREEARQT
#HuEwww.npegroup.com.hk °c B & &N E A5 E
FEAREBNERE - REENEHE xﬂZI_IZlK’/_\\TZ
EARMER M ATAETEE BT RE
FRO1HE1102% ©

BEXH

MREEE  ZATERAHTASTMBIEAHEESE
Xt BREEBEBRDNSHARATHEALA_-Z
T TFEtEtRtHHMNBRUREA AT HIEA S
T TEABTHABMNRERRAERAM

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23  &F ¥R 2022/23

o1



52

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

o RYR RS I

A\ Crowe

BEESE () StMEHMERARE
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

B A TSIRET 7R IBE09E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to
171, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Valuation of trade receivables

Refer to notes 2(h)(i), 2(j) and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies

The Key Audit Matter
FARESTFIH

Trade receivables amounted to approximately HK$1,383,652,000
as at 31 March 2023.
RIZT=F=A=+—0HBREZFHIEL%31,383,652,000
V= ks

Management make estimates when assessing impairment
provision of trade receivables. The estimates were made based
on the ageing of the receivable balances, debtors’ credit quality,
likelihood of collection, historical write-off experience and
current market conditions.

ReTh RN E ZMIBRRERER > EEEFH s AR
s ERBWRIBA R IRE - EFANGEEER IXE
FIEHI BT AR ~ A M EE SC B S B AT T AL o

We identified this as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because assessing recoverability of debts involves a significant
degree of judgement and estimation by management.
EMHNEARERESEE IWHAREBGREMHFREN
BEM UERREBHEEFN R EER S R EREFLE
KIZE A B R (5t o

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR Y S S

RREEE
FREFFEERBERMANFEXHE  BHEE
PrREMBERERNBEARAREENFTR LS
BRERMEFBEGEVHREADAERE
ETREN -RMTEHELEFHEHEBNE
Bo

FEUs B 5 R IAL E

FH2REESMBRRMEE20) ) 20 R17KRE 5t
HER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEtPREAMERNTG A

- we obtained direct confirmations from a
selected sample of debtors for the trade

receivables
KMEHmENGEREASEWE ZHRIEER
HiZER

- we inspected, on a sampling basis, external
documents and evidences to support
the validity and completeness of sales to
gain assurance for the outstanding trade
receivables
BPEERRE I R LU i
ENB R R STEM > fE MRl AR U B89 FE
W& ZRIBES (R

- we assessed the management’s basis and
assumptions employed in making estimates
on the impairment provision of the
receivable balances and the extent of loss
allowance required
BB 5T E IR i 5 FE R IB AR ER BV R
EEE KR PTRRFLE N EIBREEERK
B PREL YRR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZEMERS

Valuation of prepayments and deposits

Refer to note 2(h)(ii) and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies

The Key Audit Matter
FARESTFIE

Prepayments and deposits amounted to approximately
HK$322,368,000 as at 31 March 2023.
RZIEBE_=F=A=+—H BENREEREREHNR
322,368,000/ 7T °

Management performed assessment as at end of each reporting
period to consider whether there is any indication that these
prepayments and deposits may be impaired. The recoverable
amounts of these prepayments and deposits are assessed by the
estimate of net cash flows to be received for the utilisation of
the prepayments and deposits taking into account the events
that have occurred and circumstances that have changed,
historical experience and current market condition.
BEEREREGARETNE UZREEEEATRET
ZERNRIBERREOIERNE - ZERMRIEBERZEEH AU
Bl RBEAZERMRERREFWNNESRER
B TEREELENEGRERENE R - BELREK
S A1

Based on the results of management’s impairment assessment,
reversal of impairment loss of approximately HK$932,000 have
been made by management on prepayments and deposits for
the year ended 31 March 2023.
REEEENAETGER &E_ S _=F=A=+—H
tHEE BEEENBEMNRERRESHERERBBEZEDY
932,000/ 7T ©

We identified this as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because assessing the recoverable amounts of prepayments
and deposits involve significant degree of judgement and
estimation by management.

EMHENEARERESEE WHRAREBGEMHREN
BEM > DU TG TR RIE K 32 & BV BT U 0] & 8 6 0 &z
BB FE EAREEH & K (G5t o

RAMEREE HE

AP BRRMEE2(h) () R18KR FEHEIR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEtPREAMERNTGE

we obtained direct confirmations from a
selected sample of counterparties for the
prepayments and deposits
BRPEHENSFAHBAMRERESE
BN E R

we inspected, on a sampling basis, external
documents and evidences to support the
validity and completeness of prepayments
and deposits
BMEERE B GREBR UZFE
NFEMRIBEREEN AR R TTEM

we assessed the management’s basis
and assumptions employed in making
estimates in the impairment provision of the
prepayments and deposits balances and the
extent of impairment loss required
BMEEEEE M BMNEBEREESE
ERAVR EEE R RIELNREREREE
BRF B K 15 R P LE B 1R 5%
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR Y S S

FRAEMBERREEZBERSEUIINES

EEFTHHMEEEE HMERSSENEHNE
BANEMELR  EFEEFEHHFRER KRN
FE AV IR BN R o

RUEGREMBRENERE N REEMER
AT AEZEEMES EREATANEERS

A
o ©

MBEZGEMBREAMS  RMANEEEHEH
tMmES  EBERET EEHEMEEETEKRE
MHBBRRIRMEBBERRF T ENERFE
EXRIEHE NEUTFEERERRAABIR

ERBMHEHITHIFE UREMISEMESR
FEEAHRRL RMBEREZFE-EE
HE HAEEAFERERERS -

EENMGESMBRRARBENTRE

BREEREBRBEARKEREREEEM
FENGEEHMHFRE THEIARBEEME
BERNBEHEINFEHRIFNERMERNEKR
SEERMRAL P R A BB IEH & F -

ERECEEMBRAE - EFE8TE S5H
FREEERET WEBABR M RERFEK
EAMNEER URERAFERKER T AR
RIFESEARER SEEBEIFLELE 5
BEHMBRNEA SR

EFTERZEERPTRIOIKEEE &55H
MHREBENEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BIZEMERS

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

BYMMBZLG S B RRARKENTE

RAMER EHGROMBREABERERSAEE
R IEFS SR M E RN E AR RS 518
R WHABSERMERNZBANRE - AR
SERBAREADE (—UN\—5) B0FREE
ErEERRRSES  FRILZIN RREHEHEM
B - RMBAMERENAND  HEMEMA
TEENAEEFEEE

BEREESKTHRE BETERBRREES
B ERETHES R —ERERMRAFE
By A8 BE 32 3R o $E SRRt T LU FR BR GRS S5 AR 51 E
MRGEFRRCMEENERERTEZELES
B AR LR E KBRS Y T IRAFTF L BEE
RE B BRERRARHEREKN

ERBEBEERETEFNBERET RME
7T BHEFE - RIF T HEREERRE - RATF

. s B M ST R S ERSF SR SR M B RUR S R
BRERGFEERERMRANRRE > &5tk
PITESIEFUREEERE UK ER
REMBENEERE FARMAEREN
B o N IREFRIBE S R BE - REER
B R OB ARER 2 ko
F IR REMFEMERNER R
ARSI AREHIRHABRMERNE
R $EER R A LR

. TREBRSEBANANEES URFEE
NEEF BEENLIFY SEERE
ERINBREERER -
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VR Y S S
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Alvin Yeung Sik Hung.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 June 2023

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05206

HHREZZEGBENFETR  HMEEMES
BERARGEMBERENESRAER AMBE
PRRASRE St IE - WA E R BN R &S RS L
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

S A4S 2
TREEm
FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

2023 2022
== ===
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
bzt FET FAET

Revenue e &= 4(a) 1,888,298 262,229
Cost of sales 4 E B AR (1,869,190) (251,321)
Gross profit EF 19,108 10,908
Other net income HUg AR5 5 2,185 2,057
Selling and distribution costs & Ko 70 85 pl As (1,181) (886)
Administrative expenses THEXz (14,816) (13,601)
Other operating expenses Hm& = (1,296) (4,425)
Profit/(loss) from operations R (F518) 4,000 (5,947)
Finance costs BB A 6(a) (631) (889)
Profit/(loss) before taxation Erf AR (B518) 6 3,369 (6,836)
Income tax FriS#R 7(a) (2,032) 1,399
Profit/(loss) for the year FERRF (F58) 1,337 (5,437)
Attributable to: TEHIANLFES :

Owners of the Company KABHEE A 1,842 (5,452)

Non-controlling interests R (505) 15
Profit/(loss) for the year FERiEf, (F5i8) 1,337 (5,437)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to ZSAF#EE AEGEER

owners of the Company wH (F518) 1,842 (5,452)

HK Cent HK Cent
Al Al

Profit/(loss) per share SRR (B58) 11
Basic and diluted EAXKREE 0.009 (0.026)

The notes on pages 66 to 171 form part of these consolidated 5566 =171B 2 it A X SiE e R HRER 2 —26
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
rERmRkEMEEN=mER

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

2023 2022
—E-= -
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Profit/(loss) for the year FERiEfl (F5i8) 1,337 (5,437)
Other comprehensive FRzEMZ2E FEX) S
(expenses)/income for the year
Items that may be reclassified REBAEENHBEEERZIER
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on NENBARMBRERELEZ
translation of financial statements EREE
of subsidiaries (39,315) 20,593
Reclassification adjustments for the HIEM B AR Z B D EAE
deregistration of a subsidiary 26 1,532
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income ERZ EMaEmE FIk) W
for the year (net of nil tax (2022: nil)) BREBERE (CE-__F:35)) (39,289) 22,125
Total comprehensive (expenses)/ Fr2E fEx) EiEEE
income for the year (37,952) 16,688
Attributable to: THIALEM:
Owners of the Company PANEIEZ ZS DN (37,871) 16,906
Non-controlling interests FEER R (81) (218)
(37,952) 16,688

The notes on pages 66 to 171 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKRAR

AT31MARCH?2023 MIE_=F=HF=+—H

2023 2022
—EZ= =S
Notes HKS$’000 HKS000
Kz FAET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BRE MR 13(a) 29,452 31,610
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13(b) 16,315 23,796
Goodwill RS 14 - =
Other intangible asset HthmEEE 15 - -
Deferred tax assets IR IR E B 23(b) 39 40
45,806 55,446
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =8 16 45,455 57,553
Trade receivables FEW & Z 718 17 1,383,652 98,920
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE & &
receivables H AU R TE 18 322,731 404,082
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 19(a) 7,532 9,018
1,759,370 569,573
Current liabilities REBIAE
Trade payables B E S8 20 1,280,023 45,840
Accruals, deposits and other payables EEtER - Ee Kk
HpE I8 21 31,230 37,451
Lease liabilities HEE®RE 22 1,196 1,063
Tax payable EEIRIE 23(a) 3,296 2,964
1,315,745 87,318
Net current assets REBEEZFE 443,625 482,255
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRHER 489,431 537,701
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBIRRR
AT31 MARCH 2023 R-ZE_=F=HA=+—H
2023 2022
== =
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
ok FAET FAET
Non-current liabilities IERENEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 5,293 15,611
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 23(b) 66 66
5,359 15,677
Net assets BEFE 484,072 522,024
Equity %ﬁ
Equity attributable to owners KNBHEB NEEER
of the Company
Share capital (&N 24(b) 4,217 4,217
Reserves ] 488,989 526,860
493,206 531,077
Non-controlling interests IR S (9,134) (9,053)
Total equity e EE 484,072 522,024
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson R _ZF - =F B -+t HEEF T A RIRE

27 June 2023. {70

Mr. Ho Yu-shun Ms. Sun Le
A2 EEE et Kedun
Director Director
£ EE

The notes on pages 66 to 171 form part of these consolidated F66ZE171EZZA%EHEE
financial statements. pad
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HEBE

n\7|'\ *

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAFERAEL
Non-
Share Share Merger Capital ~ Statutory Contributed  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves surplus reserve profits Total interests equity
Ba  RVER AHEE  ESEE  iEHE  RERE ERRE  RIEY Bt EREE  REEE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2021 RIE-Z—EmA-H 4217 41,970 (1522) 7,851 14,460 31,960 (3,216) 418,451 514171 (8,835) 505,336
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (5452) (5452) 15 (5,437)
Reclassification adjustments for HHENBARZ
the deregistration of subsidiary BN ERE - - - - - - 1,532 - 1532 - 1532
Exchange differences arising on BERBARMBRR
translation of financial statements of EEVERER
subsidiaries = = = = = = 20,826 = 20,826 (233) 20,593
Total comprehensive income for the year ER2E N HLE - - - - - - 22,358 (5,452) 16,906 (218) 16,688
Transfer from retained profits to statutory R & EH| EHEATE
reserves =1 - - - - 208 - - (2,042) = = =
Utilisation of reserve RS - - - - (982) = = 982 = = =
At 31 March 2022 RZB-ZF
=B=1+-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 15,520 31,960 19,142 411,939 531,077 (9,053) 522,024
At 1 April 2022 RZEZZEMmA-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 15,520 31,960 19,142 411,939 531,077 (9,053) 522,024
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - - - 1,842 1,842 (505) 1,337
Reclassification adjustments for the HHENBARZ
deregistration of a subsidiary ENNEEE - - - - - - 26 - 26 - 26
Exchange differences arising on BENBARMBRR
translation of financial statements of EEVERER
subsidiaries - - - - - - (39,739) - (39,739) 24 (39,315)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year A2 E %4 - - - - - - (39,713) 1,842 (37,871) (81) (37,952)
Transfer from retained profits to HRAFNERTET
statutory reserves =1 - - - - 2,000 - - (2,000) - - -
Utilisation of reserve BREE - - - - (548) - - 548 - - -
At31 March 2023 RZBZZF
ElEET= 4,217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 16,972 31,960 (20,571) 412,329 493,206 (9,134) 484,072
The notes on pages 66 to 171 form part of these consolidated 566171 B 2 st A X LM BREZ —

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HERERER

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

2023 2022
== =
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
ok FHET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI ATEA] (B518) 3,369 (6,836)
3,369 (6,836)
Adjustments for: U T HZIEEH 2 8%
Finance costs =YD 6(a) 631 889
Written off of property, M2 ~ R 5 e 55 1 T
plant and equipment 6(c) 263 158
Depreciation for property, ME-BERREZ
plant and equipment TEs 6(c) 2,582 5,447
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 6(c) 5,714 6,097
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries SEIEM B A B 18 6(c) 55 384
Loss allowance recognised/(reversal of FEWE SHIBERRE
loss allowance) on trade receivables B BOEE
) 6(c) 1,782 (239)
Reversal of loss allowance on other HthpE U R I8 o]
receivables B IR 6(c) - (54)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ & RENRIB
impairment loss recognised (EEIRERE)
on deposits and prepayments BHERRERE 6(c) (932) 2,106
Written down of inventories EFEEMR 6(c) - 1,682
Impairment loss recognised on FEE R B RS
non-controlling interests RERIE 6(c) 391 372
Interest income FEUWA 5 (391) (372)
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss ER Garl)) 5183458 (705) 1,032
9,390 17,502
12,759 10,666
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEETEH
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEZ R (g 7,845 (26,275)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  FENEB S HIBE
(tEm R (1,289,790) 429,232
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FENREBEEE R
deposits and other receivables Hth I
L, (4n) 51,950 (31,840)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables EREZHIEZ
B, Ossl) 1,233,611 (368,546)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, EsTER ek
deposits and other payables HtEmRIEZ
CRZ) /1810 (3,722) 317
(106) 2,888

64 NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mAaRERER

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

2023 2022
—E= BT
Notes HKS’000 HKS 000
Kz FAET FET
CASH GENERATED FROM KERKEZRE
OPERATIONS 12,653 13,554
Income taxes paid BEFTER
PRC 2] 23(a) (1,483) (1,006)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RKERKEFHZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFEE 11,170 12,548
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Payment for the purchase of property, THEENE -BEK
plant and equipment HEZRIE 13(a) (3,007) (4,094)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BAREREIHZ
ACTIVITIES REFEE (3,007) (4,094)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEE
Capital element of lease rental paid BENMHEZAEE D (8,933) (5,996)
Interest element of lease rental paid BNHEEZHEI D (631) (889)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ARMEEH 2R 55
ACTIVITIES (9,564) (6,885)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH RERREEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GRZL) 3Ehn73%E (1,401) 1,569
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENMZRERREEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 9,018 7,518
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EERAREZHE
RATES CHANGES (85) (69)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MREXRZRERREEEY
END OF THE YEAR 7,532 9,018
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS BN RERERZ
STATED IN THE CONSOLIDATED RERREEEY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 19(a) 7,532 9,018

The notes on pages 66 to 171 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke M SRR M5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

New Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. The Company'’s registered
office is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company is located at
Unit 1102, 11/F, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries of
the Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies (Cap 622) Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

— R E

MREEZRERAE (TAAE1) KE
REZMRIAERREERAE > HEMD
2P BT o AR A B 5F B R i 1%
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda’ MA AR ZE AT EE
EM B AT B E(FAEEE6-8RIHZH L
11481102ZE ©

KRB RREZER AT - AABHERE
ZETBEBFBEN KRN B RAWE
29°

MRNEERTEGFHR

(@ AHEH

IEFR G M BRI IERFAAEER
ERMHREER (EBYBRS
ZQ ) IERBRARBEE B
fAg (EBEFMAS)) Bz
FRAEEREREBMFBREZER
EEGER (EEEEL) &
2R -EEEEERSSREI &
EBEREFRG (F622F) ZBAK
BEREGN - WLERSPHFRRIR
MEBBHMERZARAR (T
PR) sE LM ARAN (TEMARR)
ZERWERE - NEBFTRMZ
BRI HRKENR T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRREERFEGEEE (B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a) Statement of compliance (continued) (a) EHEH @
The HKICPA has issued certain amendments SRS A EEME TREST
to HKFRSs which are first effective or available SRNBREEN ZEBEYH
for early adoption for the current accounting BREEANAERAGHHAEAER
period of the Group. Note 3 provides 4B ] IR B ERAR o MY SE31R 11
information on any changes in accounting B RIER L E# 5] A& ESTZERIFT
policies resulting from the initial application SIMZEMEFERETH 2 ER
of these developments to the extent that MR EREHEHRRPAIRIEE
they are relevant to the Group for the A S stEAR A E BB E RIR -

current accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Basis of preparation of the consolidated (b) REMBHRRZENEE
financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for BE_Z_—F=-HB=+—HIE
the year ended 31 March 2023 comprise the EZHREUBRROERABIRE
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred ME AT (WiEIAER)) o

to as the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements REBBETEERZUBREME
of each entity in the Group are measured BEEDRAZERK ST
using the currency of the primary economic EREIRE G (T &)
environment in which the entity operates (the FE-HEFREVBRIRUET
“functional currency”). These consolidated (Bl 2| BFEREEIN B
financial statements are presented in Hong FEEEINEERIZAZ TUsHe
Kong dollars (“HKD”"), rounded to the nearest BILARRBZINEEE R AER
thousand except for per share data. Hong Kong ZE2HREK

dollar is the Company’s functional currency and
the Group’s presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation MBHRRDIZELMARERTE
of the financial statements is the historical cost HERR
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 31.

2.

mMREERTEGFER (@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRREERFEGEEE (B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (c) Bt 8 A B R JEHERG 2
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the N EMNEIEERNC SR =y R o
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is AEBRSHEBREEBMAESH
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from HAEEERERIEEZEER
its involvement with the entity and has the Hr B[Ok BAEMFEBERZ
ability to affect those returns through its power ERNEANTEZFLR BARE
over the entity. When assessing whether the EEfZER T ARG
Group has power, only substantive rights (held BRENE EETEAEE REAM
by the Group and other parties) are considered. ATFIFENER - HEBERIERN
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls BTR—ERU LR 2 AEEH)
an entity if facts and circumstances indicate B AREBRSBMT G EEEME
that there are changes to one or more of the GEA=-E

elements of control.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated R —FE M B A B 2 % & H & = 7
into the consolidated financial statements from itz B EEREGIEALRIEHE
the date that control commences until the IREst AREMBERR EEBLE
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, B RERAETREURBERR
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised RZPRES 2 A A H AR IR HF] S
profits arising from intra-group transactions are B R B AR 5 B 75 i 2 B AR U ©
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated HEEBRRZMES 2 RKEHEIE
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting MEARBIRB AR 2 75 0 F LU
from intra-group transactions are eliminated B L R EEREE AR

in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity JEPERE TR TH 5 MY B A Bl Rt FE FH
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or AT ERNEZEGZER M
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of REBTREZERRZFE AR
which the Group has not agreed any additional EAEMZRIMERME R A EEELR
terms with the holders of those interests which FERTEEHEREER ZEE
would result in the Group as a whole having mB EENEE-

a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company.
Total comprehensive income or expenses of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/ permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)
(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

2.

BE_Z_—F=-A=+—HLFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZE T _=F=-HFA=+—HLEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGUs (or group of CGUs)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro - rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of CGUs). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. Any
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

mMRNEERTEGFER (@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any
of the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)):

- interests in leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the property
interest (see note 2(qg));

- right-of-use assets arising from leases
over leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

- other items of plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets arising
from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 2(g)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:
Plant, machinery and  5%-33%

equipment
Furniture and fixtures  20%-25%
Office equipment 20%-33%
Computer equipment  20%-33%
Motor vehicles 20%-30%
Leasehold Over the shorter of
the remaining term
of the lease and the
estimated useful life
of 4 years

improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and is recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, which are carried at
cost, less any recognised impairment losses.
Costs include any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for
their intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired are
stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZEZE T _=F=FA=+—HLEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, is recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct
the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments (less any lease incentives
receivable) payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred. Lease payments also include amounts
expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees; the exercise price of
a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes
2(e) and 2(h)(ii)), except for the right-of-use
assets related to leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of
the leasehold interest are carried at cost in
accordance with note 2(e).

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position. In the
consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease
liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
in property, plant and equipment and presents
lease liabilities separately in the statement of
financial position.

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs)
on the financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and other
receivables).

Other financial assets measured at
fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (that is, the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade receivables and other
receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #( &

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the

following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result
from possible default events
within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on trade
receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting

date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of
the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZE T _=F=-HFA=+—HLEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRNEERTEGEHEEK (B
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(h)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (hy EEBEREERE @)
(continued)
(i) Credlit losses from financial instruments (i) FTHTRZIEEEE (8B)
(continued)
Significant increases in credit risk EEREEEEM (@
(continued)
In particular, the following information THAENGHEEREZES
is taken into account when assessing B BB EEILINE
whether credit risk has increased EEZRUTER :

significantly since initial recognition:

= failure to make payments of = AETEEHNEEA
principal or interest on their TRNEREHFE ;
contractually due dates;

= an actual or expected significant = TR T AN HA
deterioration in a financial HEEFR (WA)
instrument’s external or internal BERNEHREER
credit rating (if available); 5 5

= an actual or expected significant = BEHEARESXEE
deterioration in the operating MR EiEE =L ;
results of the debtor; and Y4

= existing or forecast changes = RBERFEMRRI ™
in the technological, market, 5 RB S ERIRIE
economic or legal environment BEHEHE AR
that have a significant adverse EBETHERZ
effect on the debtor’s ability BENEREKXRTF
to meet its obligation to the &
Group.

Depending on the nature of the BEEMTAZHE 8

financial instruments, the assessment [ Bz B8 = 18 7]1]23?15?5@

of a significant increase in credit risk AMIEE S EREEET S

is performed on either an individual P ERREE Lﬁﬁ &

basis or a collective basis. When the MTEZRBHEREER

assessment is performed on a collective R (Bl E R AR AR R (5

basis, the financial instruments are ERRTR) 8o

grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZEZE T _=F=FA=+—HLEE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

The Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since
the initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECLs
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 2(s)(ii) is
calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (that is,
the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRUBERFIEGHHEHE (B)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(h)  Credit losses and impairment of assets (h) EEFEREERE (@&
(continued)
(i) Credlit losses from financial instruments (i) FTHTRZIEEEE (8B)
(continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets TMEEZEERE @
(continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is THMEECEEREZER
credit-impaired includes the following BB T REEH

observable events:

= significant financial difficulties = BEHAEBEREKX
of the debtor; AT PR B

= a breach of contract, such as a = BAENTA AW
default or past due event; RS EEAES ;

= it becoming probable that = BEEANEGEE
the borrower will enter into NETHMHBE
bankruptcy or other financial FIZN

reorganisation;

= significant changes in the = AT~ hiE s KB
technological, market, FEREREZLEE KR
economic or legal environment BE HETAESE
that have an adverse effect on THIE ;5

the debtor; or

= the disappearance of an active = HRET ARRM
market for a security because R B ERE™
of financial difficulties of the BE K o
issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or
in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

= other intangible asset;

= goodwill;

- prepayments and deposits; and

= investments in subsidiaries in

the Company’s statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable

amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of
the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent
of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
A portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (for
example, head office building) is
allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if the allocation
can be done on a reasonable
and consistent basis, or to
the smallest group of (cash-
generating units) if otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment
losses

An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying amount of an asset
will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

- Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process
of production for such sale or in the form of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRUBERFIEGHHEHE (B)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i) Inventories (continued) (i) =8 (&
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount FEHER ZEFE2KREES
of those inventories is recognised as an expense RN SRR ER Az
in the period in which the related revenue is 17 B iR = o] 43R % (8 B R IE A P
recognised. The amount of any write-down of BREEEER MRS RS E L R
inventories to net realisable value and all losses BRARZ FEZEMMBZE
of inventories are recognised as an expense IOl S RER A O ARERER A
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. ERREFEETIE 2R

The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.

() Trade and other receivables (j) B 5 R HtEWKRRIE
A receivable is recognised when the Group has FEWLFRIE I 2 & B B (R R R A IR
an unconditional right to receive consideration. ER B B 1 52 o i A (B B HA S R Al
A right to receive consideration is unconditional FEREER  BIWERREZ #
if only the passage of time is required before F A EEM MR AERAB WK
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue B2 EARRER] B B R sR W a o BY
has been recognised before the Group has an ZAIEZINRENEE-

unconditional right to receive consideration,
the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a TEEEAMBAERIBOZEZE
significant financing component are initially WEER T RER ZERTE 6
measured at their transaction prices. Trade SEAMBAERID 2 B2 R
receivables that contain a significant financing AR EMEWRIBY] & %A B
component and other receivables are initially RBBAFTE-FTAERKRIBEERE
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. RS A AN BR R B PR A RN BRTE
All receivables are subsequently stated at HEEBEBEEEIR (RME2(h)
amortised cost, using the effective interest (i)

method, less allowance for expected credit
losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

(k) Interest-bearing borrowings (k) EEE
Interest-bearing borrowings are measured sFEBEBUA R ETPRR 2
initially at fair value less attributable transaction KT E YA R stEEER
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 1 8 PR A 2K DU 85 Al A 51 BR o A1)
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at ERZAREAERFREERA
amortised cost using the effective interest 2 EETER (R EE2(u)) sl e

method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs (see note 2(u)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(U]

(m)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
banks and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECLs) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(h)(i).

Cash at bank excludes bank balances that are
subject to regulatory restrictions that result in
such balances no longer meeting the definition
of cash.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRREERFEGEEE (B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)  Derecognition of financial assets (n) HRUEBIETHEE
The Group derecognises a financial asset only EEREERBRESRENEL#E
when the contractual rights to the cash flows MERR NEEEMEETEE
from the asset expire, or when it transfers REEEBENEBAN D AR RE
the financial asset and substantially all the BRTE—BRN AERF KL
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to MRZETMEE o MAEE &
another entity. If the Group neither transfers ERTEREEARENEARL D
nor retains substantially all the risks and ROl WAESET EEEE
rewards of ownership and continues to control E RAEERINZEEZRE
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its e R E ] AE B 2 (T RS REFE SR
retained interest in the asset and an associated HHERE -HAEEREEEEREE
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the MEEHESENBAE D RARKE
Group retains substantially all the risks and BoAAEREERIEREE >
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial TEE WA SRIBERR AL
asset, the Group continues to recognise FERR o

the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured AR B AT 2SR/
at amortised cost, the difference between BEER BEREEREBRER
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of RERENEREGNIBAMEE -

the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

(0) Derecognition of financial liabilities (o) #RIFEIETRERE
The Group derecognises financial liabilities 2 (BEE rEESEEHR I
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations HE R AR AEE S & IEER
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. THEE-RIEINEHEER
The difference between the carrying amount HERD N REMREZBNELE
of the financial liability derecognised and the = bk

consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

Employee benefits

(1)

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date, without taking into
consideration of all non-market vesting
conditions, using the Binomial Model,
taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options
will vest.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #( &

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Equity-settled share-based payments
(continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in
the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised when it is
transferred to the share premium
account or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained profits).
When the share options are forfeited
prior to the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in capital reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRUBERFIEGHHEHE (B)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(q) Income tax (continued) (q) Frig# (&)
Apart from certain limited exceptions, all BRETHBRZAINMERSIN FRE
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax RERIBESERMBIRIEREEE
assets to the extent that it is probable that (AP #E R B m] BE RS FE SR AR s )
future taxable profits will be available against MeZEEEN THAERR) 15
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. T LARE SR o A 5T e 58 8 BT 40 R B B
Future taxable profits that may support the ERMMESX ZREREBEEZ KK
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from FERM AN R HIEERRRY
deductible temporary differences include those REEEELICEn HEILEERRE
that will arise from the reversal of existing HE—RBEERBRE—ERERE
taxable temporary differences, provided that B TEERER PRGN ER
those differences relate to the same taxation TEHALE O 2 A —HAf A D ST R
authority and the same taxable entity, and are RERIBBEEEE 2 RBHEETE
expected to reverse either in the same period Bl 8 A 2 BAfE A # 0] o jR 5T 2 3R
as the expected reversal of the deductible BERNEHFEERSATEIR
temporary differences or in periods into which FRZNBEIENRERMEE ZE
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can ERMBEBEERFBALAERZE
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are EZEEERE—RBEERRA
adopted when determining whether existing B —ERRE LR LTEHRER
taxable temporary differences support the HE R IR R Rl A 2 BB R #E R
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from FEtBERN-.

unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of AR EREBEEERBEZBRA
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those SMEREIE R RTINS 5 EEEN
temporary differences arising from goodwill B2 EEMSI Rz EREE YD
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial M A BT RERR G 2
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect BEEHAER (EEFTTAEBSH
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided Z2—85)  UKRBRRKEB RS
they are not part of a business combination), KEMSIRZ2EFEE (NABH
and temporary differences relating to MERE > QR A5 B 7] DG #5
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, [EIEFfE > B1E R 78 R 2k A KA BE
in the case of taxable differences, the Group BElzBREERNAN FHRE
controls the timing of the reversal and it is ECAIRRBRAIBEERKER 2 &
probable that the differences will not reverse #)o

in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 & ¥R 2022/23

97



98

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRUBERFIEGHHEHE (B)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(q) Income tax (continued) (q) Frig# (&)
= in the case of deferred tax assets and = HBIEIERIEEEREE
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes ZEEERBBHSAEAR
levied by the same taxation authority —MRBHEARU TER—
on either: EBWNREREE :
= the same taxable entity; or = E—FERINER ; X
= different taxable entities, = REIERRE LS
which, in each future period in ZEERTEITE
which significant amounts of A KZEIRIERIE
deferred tax liabilities or assets BEEREERENE
are expected to be settled or MEFRIEE B 1 U
recovered, intend to realise the ESESEEE PSSR
current tax assets and settle BRHEEEHIFAR
the current tax liabilities on a HREEEREE
net basis or realise and settle AEARIEEE > A
simultaneously. RNERZBEE RS
(R
(r) Provisions, contingent liabilities and (r) BE -IREEREESN
onerous contracts
(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities (i) EERIAEE
Provisions are recognised when the EXAEEEMBEEHK
Group has a legal or constructive BEEREEEE BETT
obligation arising as a result of a past EEAEAREKEN D
event, it is probable that an outflow WA fEH Al et B E
of economic benefits will be required R E o MEKNEREE
to settle the obligation and a reliable BEX AZRBtEITZE
estimate can be made. Where the time 1EFT 5 Y 2 1 3R (B 5T IR £
value of money is material, provisions fio

are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts (continued)

(1)

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the
Group has a contract under which
the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed
the economic benefits expected to be
received from the contract. Provisions
for onerous contracts are measured
at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the net cost of fulfilling
with the contract.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Revenue and other income
Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more than
12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if
the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (that is, the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other
party (that is, the Group is an agent).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is a principal if it controls the
specified good or service before that good or
service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision of
the specified good or service by another party.
In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another
party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of
any fee or commission to which it expects to
be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRUBERFIEGHHEHE (B)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Revenue and other income (continued) (S) Wam B B AU A (88)

(i) Interest income (i) FEUWA

Interest income is recognised as it FEU AT E 4 RFIR I
accrues under the effective interest BERANEL BREMEE
method using the rate that exactly B 8 5t F HA & i 51 2R 2R
discounts estimated future cash HEWAERIBE S/
receipts through the expected life of BEERBABBENHNERE
the financial asset to the gross carrying HRUEHEREAFEZIE
amount of the financial asset. For EERETHEE (BEE
financial assets (other than purchased REEBELEEEREBEN
or originated credit-impaired financial ERMEERN) > BEFE
assets) measured at amortised cost that BRREEZREAEE H
are not credit-impaired, the effective EERBEZEHMEEMS
interest rate is applied to the gross ERMNEXERANEEZ#
carrying amount of the asset. For credit- tHAR A (BDH0PRES 1B 2
impaired financial assets, the effective IREAEE) (RMEE2(h)30) °

interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (that is, gross carrying amount net
of loss allowance) of the asset (see note

2(h)(i).

(i)  Government grants (i) BT EEL

Government grants are recognised fie °] & 32 7 7E SE 40 W BRI
in the statement of financial position A #E Al > T A& B R S I
initially when there is reasonable T #68 Bi P B 75 B 458 14 > B R
assurance that they will be received T % Bl 7E B 75 AR R R AT
and that the Group will comply with AR cHEAEEMMESL
the conditions attaching to them. AN EMEREERSZN
Grants that compensate the Group for B—HEZRREREER
expenses incurred are recognised as PR PEDBUWA cHER
income in profit or loss on a systematic EEEENANBHEBEE
basis in the same periods in which EREENR EBRZZ
the expenses are incurred. Grants that BEENAERAFEREBN
compensate the Group for the cost of BITERZEBRAEANER
an asset are deducted from the carrying o

amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to
hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates and are
not re-translated. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 April 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRREERFEGEEE (B

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Translation of foreign currencies (continued) (t) SMEE (B
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that REEBMNERE BIHERERR
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in ZBNEF 22D TP R K
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving EOREEBINEBR B AT 2
lost of control over a subsidiary that includes ZHE) B AR EEE AR
a foreign operation), all of the exchange GZEBRERRFZBERE
differences accumulated in equity in respect of ENnLEHMNEERR

that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary HWHDHESCRBINEHE ZIBA
that includes a foreign operation that does B RERAERBRENBRATE 2
not result in the Group losing control over PR R > Bl ¥ I LB R T BE R A=
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of EEMEBRIEERER M
accumulated exchange differences is re- FRi8 5 RESD

attributed to non-controlling interests and is
not recognised in profit or loss.

(u) Borrowing costs (v fEERE
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to BEEEREA BEREERTE—
the acquisition, construction or production of EBHERZFE A AIERER®
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial RIHEZEEMSIRZBERE
period of time to get ready for its intended use BIERAZEEENS DRARTE
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that AoMEMMBEMANEHESE M
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in F{ERIZ

the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part REESHELER REERASE
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences FRREEEEFRTHAGNHE
when expenditure for the asset is being PR 2 AENTE TR BB A A B
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred REREAGBREEMREAZ —3
and activities that are necessary to prepare the DoBEECEREEFRERR
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. WIHERMR 2 BRI D IEEN R LS
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended ST BERAEERLIEER
or ceases when substantially all the activities 1Go

necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or
completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZEZE T _=F=FA=+—HLEE

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. RNEE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(v) Related parties (v) i
(i) A person, or a close member of that (i)

person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(@) has control or joint control over
the Group;
(b) has significant influence over

the Group; or

() is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any (ii)
of the following conditions applies:

(@) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate
or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group
of which the other entity is a
member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture
of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZE T _=F=-HFA=+—HLEE

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND 2. HRREERFEGEEE (B
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(v) Related parties (continued) (v) REAL (@)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any (i) i fF & THME MR > BllsZ
of the following conditions applies: BRENERFRHE . (B
(continued)
(e) The entity is a post-employment (e) B A A& E oA
benefit plan for the benefit of rEBEBEREZE
employees of either the Group BEEMNAERZ T
or an entity related to the Z BB 5T 8 o
Group.
) The entity is controlled or (f) BREZ()AMIEAL
jointly controlled by a person ISR o

identified in (i).

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has (9) () (a)IBFTIE A T
significant influence over the ERBEATESN
entity or is a member of the HEZEE (HEE
key management personnel of BZz8RA) 2FE
the entity (or of a parent of the BEEBAE-
entity).

(h)  The entity or any member of (h) MAEEFAEER
a group of which it is a part, SABEREEEE
provides key management EAERBNERE
personnel services to the Group REFMBEENT
or to the Group’s parent. fAIRB AR -

Close members of the family of a person HE—ATZHARBUIRE

are those family members who may be REEHERETEER

expected to influence, or be influenced AR EZATHZZ

by, that person in their dealings with ATHENBRARERES °

the entity.

(w)  Segment reporting (w) SRS
Operating segments, and the amounts of REDBERNPBERRERZEZD
each segment item reported in the financial FIEE SR LIREMRPEERT
statements, are identified from the financial AEBESEBE MG D FET T EE
information provided regularly to the Group's RIAMERIRME T AEBITEAEE
chief executive officer (the chief operating (FBEEREAN) 2HBENM
decision maker) for the purposes of allocating HERE °

resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 & ¥R 2022/23

107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs and HKASs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") to these
consolidated financial statements for the current
accounting period:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment - Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and
HKASs in the current year has had no material effect
on the amounts reported and/or disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F

INANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4., WEEDEHRS

(a) Revenue (a) Y=
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) Wz 5 HF
Disaggregation of revenue from RIEEROIRELEN
contracts with customers by major Weadl s :
products is as follows:
2023 2022
—EZ= —EC
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FAET
Revenue from contracts ~ HFAMERELERNF 15578
with customers within the AZEREHKE
scope of HKFRS 15
Sourcing and sale of metal RXEKRIHE TBEY &
minerals and related HETEER
industrial materials 1,768,648 163,441
Production and sale of TERBETERER
industrial products 119,650 98,788
1,888,298 262,229
Disaggregated by BERZMIBMUE DT
geographical location of
customers
- Hong Kong (place of — &% (GEitE)
domicile) - _
- PRC except Hong Kong —HE (HHERIN 1,888,298 262,229
1,888,298 262,229

Revenue from the above categories are
recognised at point in time.

ENEES kRN &SNS
I R FEST o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (continued)

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in
the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

All sales contracts with customers
are for periods of one year or less.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these
contracts for the remaining unsatisfied
performance obligations is not
disclosed.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
chief executive officer (the chief operating
decision maker) for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following three
reportable segments.

(i) Sourcing and sale of metal minerals and
related industrial materials;

(ii) Production and sale of industrial
products; and

(iii) Others

Others segment represents business activities
and operating segments not separately
reported, including provision of logistics
services.

4. WamkDEHRS (B)

(a)

(b)

W (48)
(i) FREIRAATBLISER & AR
R E P AT Z L

2z

Im

FREERBEESN R —
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BB 1558FT ST > BLER T
RETZERHNEEMD K
ERFANZIRSERE
T LUK EE

SRS
REBBOBREBRER MO
AREZERER - ERERD
Fo ke R IR T4 T B 4 & B 1T EUAB &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s chief executive officer
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill, other
intangible asset, inventories, trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and deferred tax assets of each segment.
Segment liabilities include lease liabilities, trade
payables, accruals, deposits and other payables,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities of each
segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is gross profit less selling and distribution costs
of each segment.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment profits, the Group’s chief
executive officer is provided with segment
information concerning revenue, depreciation,
finance costs, income tax expense and
additions to non-current segment assets used
by the segments in their operations. Inter-
segment sales are priced with reference to price
charged to external parties for similar orders.

4. WamkDEHRS (B)

(b)

DERE (B
DEEE BEREE

RGO ERERRDEZE D
RER AEBEZTBAREHIZUT
BEEERZE2RDEMEZE
B EERBR:
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HRZEDEREEEZITEME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

W R RS (48)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
Segment results, assets and liabilities TEEEE EBEREE (B)
(continued)
The accounting policies of the operating KE DM G5t BERE 2P i
segments are the same as the Group's ZAREE 2 G BERAER o
accounting policies described in note 2.
Information regarding the Group’s reportable BHE_Z-"FKRZIZEZTHF=A
segments as provided to the Group’s chief —t+—HBLEHFE REFTAERT
executive officer for the purposes of resources HRHIEERD B RT G ERIR
allocation and assessment of segment ZAREBT RSB EREFHIN
performance for the years ended 31 March T 3
2023 and 2022 are set out below:
2023
Sourcing
and sale of
metal
minerals Production
and related and sale of
industrial industrial
materials products Others Total
FRERHEE
EBRMK YERHE
HRIERY T#RER Hith Mt
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue RENREEEZ
from external customers  FI2R DM 1,768,648 119,650 - 1,888,298
Reportable segment profit ~ AJ 2R 485 H] 8,546 9,381 - 17,927
Depreciation for property, ~ ¥1¥ B MR ETE
plant and equipment - (2,581) - (2,581)
Depreciation for RS ETE
right-of-use assets - (5,714) - (5,714)
Finance costs REMAE - (631) - (631)
Income tax expense FrSHBEZ - (2,031) (1 (2,032)
Reportable segment assets ] 2 RHIEE E 1,581,494 214,795 8 1,796,297
Additions to non-current  ERHREIEREN DB
segment assets during the & E
year - 3,007 - 3,007
Reportable segment liabilities 7] 23R 488 & (1,271,536) (42,257) (3,725) (1,317,518)
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WEKRAEHRS (@)
(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
Segment results, assets and liabilities TEEEE BEREE (B)
(continued)
2022
T F
Sourcing
and sale of
metal
minerals Production
and related and sale of
industrial industrial
materials products Others Total
RERHEE
EBENK FERHE
HEIEREY TX£BEEmM Hitr st
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue RE/NREEZ
from external customers  AI2HDEWE 163,441 98,788 = 262,229
Reportable segment profit 5] 23R D485 360 9,662 - 10,022
Depreciation for property, ~ ¥1¥ BB MR ETE
plant and equipment - (5,357) - (5,357)
Depreciation for (RS ETE
right-of-use assets - (6,097) - (6,097)
Finance costs MEMAE - (889) - (889)
Income tax credit/(expense) FriSHE%,/ (%) = 1,400 (1) 1,399
Reportable segment assets ] 2 IRHIEEE 374,621 239,949 9 614,579
Additions to non-current  ERHREIERENDE
segment assets during the & E
year - 4,094 - 4,094
Reportable segment liabilities 7] 23R 4E & & (36,404) (59,276) (3972) (99,652)

There are no inter-segment sales during the

years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

BE_E_=SHR_E-_F=
B =+—HBILFEE I &5 $E EiH

£ o

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HZE_ZT_—

=F=B=+—HLEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4., WmEknERSES (B
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

(b) SERE (&)

)

2Ry af - EE8E

profit, assets, liabilities and other items: REMIEEZ HER :
2023 2022
- -
HKs’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Revenue Wz
Total reportable segment revenue B 23R 5B 4B ZE 1,888,298 262,229
Elimination of inter-segment Eagi=bae ]Sl g
revenue - -
Consolidated revenue ReluEs 1,888,298 262,229
Profit gl
Total reportable segment profit RENEBRINAETERZ
derived from the Group’s A2 FR R 4EEE
external customers 17,927 10,022
Other net income H A F 58 2,185 2,057
Depreciation for property, plant REtERfERMNERFAZ
and equipment of reportable RIE2RDEZME-KE
segment not included in M BEITE
measurement of segment profit (4) -
Depreciation for right-of-use Rt E D FERAERETA
assets of reportable segment ZRIE2HNEZ
not included in measurement of FREEEINE
segment profit (540) (75)
(Loss allowance recognised)/ FEW B 27018 (B mEsd
reversal of loss allowance on E1E R E) BLESE
trade receivables g (1,782) 239
Reversal of loss allowance on other L fth /& W T IE 5 [0] 55 18 3
receivables - 54
Reversal of impairment loss/ & KR TENRIB
(impairment loss recognised) on BOURERE
deposits and prepayments (BERERRERS) 932 (2,106)
Impairment loss recognised on FEPERG HE R B SRR E RS 18
non-controlling interests (391) (372)
Written down of inventories FEEMR - (1,682)
Loss on deregistration of ST E AR 18
subsidiaries (55) (384)
Finance costs RO R A (631) (889)
Unallocated head office and ROBCEMERREEMS
corporate expenses
- Depreciation for property, —ME--BEMRBITE
plant and equipment (1) (90)
- Staff costs (including directors’ —BIMA (BEESH
emoluments) ) (7,250) (7,259)
- Others —Hh (7,021) (6,351)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before ImERRANRF] (B518)
taxation 3,369 (6,836)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZE T _=F=-HFA=+—HLEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4, WEKkDEHRS (&)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) KRS (&)
2023 2022
—EZ= -
HKs’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets AERNEEERE 1,796,297 614,579
Elimination of inter-segment 18 0 F8 R e W R B
receivable - _
1,796,297 614,579
Unallocated head office and ROEEMEREREEEE
corporate assets
- Cash and cash equivalents —RERIREEEY 7,532 9,018
- Others —Hfh 1,347 1,422
Consolidated total assets mEBERE 1,805,176 625,019
Liabilities afE
Total reportable segment liabilities 7] 2 ¥R 48 & {S48%8 1,317,518 99,652
Elimination of inter-segment HiE 48 F'W’Eéﬁ-r)\lﬁ
payable - -
1,317,518 99,652
Unallocated head office and RO EMEREREEAER
corporate liabilities
- Others —Hfh 3,586 3,343
Consolidated total liabilities rEBaEEEE 1,321,104 102,995
Other items Hhig g
Depreciation for property, ME- BB REEITE
plant and equipment
Reportable segment total 2RO LELEEE 2,581 5,357
Unallocated head office and Sk EAR N B R
corporate total 40 %E 1 90
Consolidated total REMEEE 2,582 5,447
Depreciation for right-of-use assets i FE & FE T EE
Reportable segment total 2R IELERE 5,714 6,097
Unallocated head office and kAN TR
corporate total AR - -
Consolidated total =L 5,714 6,097
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23  F %R 2022/23

115



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4., WZEkDEHRE (@)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
2023 2022
—E= -
HKs’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Other items (continued) Higg (@)
Income tax expense/(credit) T8, (E%R)
Reportable segment total A 2RO FELERE 2,032 (1,399)
Unallocated head office and RO ERE R
corporate total LR - =
Consolidated total IREH4EEE 2,032 (1,399)
Additions to non-current segment  FERREBIERENDIEE E
assets during the year
Reportable segment total Al 23R D IALEEE 3,007 4,094
Unallocated head office and RO ER
corporate total EELEEE - =
Consolidated total e AEEE 3,007 4,094
Revenue from major products and services FEERRREZ W
The following is an analysis of the Group's UMPRAEEREFEERZ WG
revenue from its major products: PRI
2023 2022
—EB-= -
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Metal minerals and related industrial <& /& #& %) 5 i8R T 2Rk
materials 1,768,648 163,441
Industrial products TH*AES 119,650 98,788
1,888,298 262,229
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers; and (ii) the Group's property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill
and other intangible asset. The geographical
location of customers is based on the location
at which the products were delivered. The
geographical locations of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets is based
on the physical location of the assets under
consideration. In the case of goodwill and other
intangible asset, it is based on the location of
the operation to which they are allocated.

4. WamkDEHRS (B)

(b)

DERE (B
B E R

TREIWAEEREIRERZ
Wk ; Re(iAEBYZE - BB KRR
B EREEE BEREMER
BERMBUBEI DA - &R
ZHBUEDRRINEmZUES]
DeoME- -BERREREREER
EZHBUENRBAEREEZ
BERUES D sl E KHMER
BEM=  MEBERFEDR 2L
EXEGHREMERID -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

RBEIAREBERZWE ERBEE

2023 2022 2023 2022
—EZ= S —E-= —F_—
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
Hong Kong (place of &% (X Eh)

domicile) - - - 2
PRC except Hong Kong FR B (F# RSN 1,888,298 262,229 45,767 55,404
1,888,298 262,229 45,767 55,406
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZEZE T _=F=FA=+—HLEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4, WEKkDEHRS (@)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
Information about major customers BHTEER ZEX
Revenue from customers contributing 10% EAREBRBIFHEREI0%NH UL ZE
or more of the total sales of the Group are as BT
follows:
2023 2022
HKs’000 HKS000
FAET FET
Customer A (note (i) BEA WEE0)) 1,711,173 -
Customer B (note (i) and (v)) B FB (W5 (i) K (v)) - 98,788
Customer C (note (iii)) B R C (a2 i) - 49,042
Customer D (note (iv) and (v)) EBD (W13 iv) R(v)) - 45,472
Customer E (note (iii)) B RE (W1 &£ Gii)) - 43,416
Notes: Wit -
i) Revenue from the above customer arose from i) BHE_Z”"_-_f#=H=1+—H

the business of sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the year ended 31 March 2023.

ii) Revenue from the above customer arose ii)
from the businesses of production and sale
of industrial products for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2022.

iii) Revenue from the above customer arose from iiii)
the business of sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the years ended 31 March 2022.

iv) Revenue from the above customers arose iv)
from the business of sourcing and sale metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the year ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

V) Revenue from the respective customer v)

contributed less than 10% of the total sales
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBHwRERMEE
E_E_—F=H=1+—HIEEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &

OTHER NET INCOME 5. HthkAFEE
2023 2022
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZF B A - -
Interest income on loan receivable FEWE R ZF] EWA 391 372
Total interest income on financial FRBRIE At 2 SR E E
assets measured at amortised cost ZHBUW A 4E%E 391 372
Sundry income IR A 652 2,570
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) ERWE (F518) /48 1,046 (885)
Government grant (note) B #EAL (H152) 96 =
2,185 2,057
Note: Kiat -

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group successfully
applied for funding support from the Employment Support
Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the
Government of HKSAR. The purpose of the funding is to
provide financial support to enterprises to retain their
employees who would otherwise be made redundant. Under

the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make AR EETIE-

redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the
funding on paying wages to the employees.

BE_T_=F=A=1+—HLEFE &~&H
MR FEBRITHRERNENRIERES
TRUZAAESBESYHZE -ESLZH
B 7 R M B R URE AT A E BN
B -EZFENERT > AEBMBEREREFT
TEMHMPBETEREREBFRDZHEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/

6. BRif

EW VY]

BU i

#,/ (§518)

BRIRATEF, (B18) B0k, (8%) 75!

(crediting) the followings: £I5 .
2023 2022
ZEZ=F B
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
(a) Finance costs Bl R A4S
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 631 889
Total interest expense on financial W IEFE A AT A
liabilities not at fair value through BmreaE
profit or loss 2R E R 4EEE 631 889
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ BT
emoluments) (BIEEEHE)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e -ITER
HAthz@ 7 20,131 22,667
Contributions to defined contribution EREMH TR RET 2
retirement plans 2= 2,515 2,822
22,646 25,489
(c) Other items HthIEH
Cost of inventories * FEm A 1,869,190 251,321
Auditors’ remuneration 1Z 21 EM #r B 700 660
Depreciation for property, IENN =
plant and equipment REBITE 2,582 5,447
Depreciation for right-of-use assets ERAEEERE 5,714 6,097
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries SHIEM B A BB 18 55 384
Loss allowance recognised/(reversal FEUL B 5 708
of loss allowance) on trade EREREERE
receivables (EEIEs1E R E) 1,782 (239)
Reversal of loss allowance on other H g RIE
receivables Ol EEE - (54)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ & R FENERIE
impairment loss recognised on (BEIRERE)
deposits and prepayments EERERIE (932) 2,106
Impairment loss recognised on FEFERG HE B FE ST
non-controlling interests RERTE 391 372
Written down of inventories FEEMR - 1,682
Written off of property, plant and ME-BE R
equipment % 17 8 263 158
# Cost of inventories, being the carrying g FERA (IEEFEEZEE) 81

amount of inventories sold, included
approximately HK$20,609,000 (2022:
approximately HK$26,783,000) relating to
staff costs and depreciation for property,
plant and equipment and for right-of-use
assets for the years ended 31 March 2023
and 2022 which amounts were also included

in the respective total amounts disclosed

separately in notes 6(b) and 6(c) for each of

these types of expenses.

BE_E_=fFkK

B2 =8

=t+—BLEFEEZERMEIRERY
* HERSETEUREREEEN
E£7920,609,0008c (ZE - —_F 1 49
26,783,000 7T) > BRAMBIEME X
H 8B 5t A 2 BURA B 5E6(b) Ke6(c) P i B

Z B IRMEEAT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REHEIRZAER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Income tax expense/(credit) in the (a) IFEHRRRZAERAS  (E%R)
consolidated statement of profit or loss 5
represents:
2023 2022
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Current tax KHERIR IR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BAENER
(note (i) (HizEa) - =
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") —ME 2RISR
(note (i) (TEZFR1SR)
(Bt 22 (i) 2,031 967
2,031 967
Over-provision of prior year BEFERBEEE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBFER - =
- PRCEIT —E R EFRISIR - (2,367)
Deferred tax RIEFRIE
Origination and reversal of BREREZEX KR
temporary differences (Hta£23(b)(i))
(note 23(b)(i)) 1 1
Total "5t 2,032 (1,399)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REHETERZFAER (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(a) Income tax expense/(credit) in the (a) IFEHERRZAERAS  (E%R)
consolidated statement of profit or loss 15 : (48)
represents:(continued)
Notes: it -

No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided
as the Group has sufficient tax losses to set-
off the assessable profits for the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022: nil).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC EIT at
25% (2022: 25%).

According to a joint circular of the Ministry
of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation, Cai Shui 2008 No. 1, only the profits
earned by foreign-investment enterprise
prior to 1 January 2008, when distributed to
foreign investors, can be grandfathered and
exempted from withholding tax. Dividend
distributed out of the profits generated
thereafter shall be subject to the EIT at 5% or

HRAEEHE_T _=F=
B=t—HIEEERHRE
5 IR Y PE SR AR A > BRI 4R
FHREBHB/R (T

=) o

B /B A B #25% (T - —
I 1 25%) MELM A E S EFT
8o

1R 3% B B B0 e [ 3R AR 75 48 = gk
&2 BN R2008515%
HNELXEEREIIEKEED
ERER-ZEENE—B—HA
Bt B 2 im A B 2R G2 A AR TE 40
Mo ZHBFAES &N D
TR Z B S RIZBH5%310% 2
EEME SR WwHFPE
BEREFEM -

10% and withheld by PRC entities.

(iii) The Group is not subject to any taxation (iii) AEBRBEZE-_=FKr_
under the jurisdiction of Bermuda, Samoa, T FE=-A=+—HILEE
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands HBEMERE EETZ -HE
for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022. HERBEBRILES ZRERE

& AN IR IE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REHEIERZFAER (&)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) (b) RIERS  (E%) BTt ERE
and accounting loss at the applicable tax RAMREHERIBENEER :
rates:
2023 2022
ko - 2 TECCF
HKs’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI AR, (B548) 3,369 (6,836)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before  FRIR A=A/ (E518) 2
taxation, calculated at the HHERIE ) BBAMETE
domestic income tax rate of HE16.5%:1 &
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) (B —# :16. 5%) 556 (1,128)
Tax effect of non-deductible ENCIEL S Rl 3 -4
expenses 1,180 1,222
Tax effect of non-taxable income TEBRRBAZRB R E (692) (1,452)
Effect of different tax rates arising ~ HMIRIBES A& ESE
from other tax jurisdictions MEER 78 608 477
Tax losses not recognised REERZ MIEE1E 1,313 1,854
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss &8 F8 EEEEE.J MIBEEEZ
not recognised MBEE (904) =
Over-provision in prior years BEFEREREE - (2,367)
Others HAth (29) (5)
Actual tax expense/(credit) BRMIERY (K% 2,032 (1,399)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8.

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

EEMNE

EIRBEBAEEAIFE3I8IMNER AT (R
BEFENDER) RESE2MFLURENE

Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information EMEmT
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2023
—E”=
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits
benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
B R BIRIEFIEE
ik B = HETEA [t et
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Ho Yu-shun AEHLE
(Chief Executive) (fTH#E%)
(appointed on 19 September 2022 R-—FE-—F
and re-designated as Chief Executive 11517/ HEZERE
Officer on 1 October 2022) ZE_-F+F-H
BERITEEE) - 1,167 - 1 1,178
Ms. Sun Le BTt - 1,800 150 18 1,968
Mr. Sin Lik Man RANEE
(resigned on 30 September 2022 and R-E-—F
with effective from 1 October 2022) AA=T1HEHF
CETCF+A-H
£5%) - 1,466 173 9 1,648
Non-executive director FRTES
Ms. Sun Di b Vikogn 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive directors i JFRITES
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RRMEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Tang Kin Nam elfegepaes 150 - - - 150
Mr. Kwong Wing Ho BKERE
(appointed on 18 October 2022) (RZEZ_F
TAT/\AEEE) 68 - - - 68
Mr. Wang Ye FREE
(retired on 16 September 2022) (RZEZ_fF
AAFEERE) 23 - - - 23
531 4,433 323 38 5,325
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8.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 8. EZEE (&)
2022
“EICE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits
benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e B BIREFIGE
ik BMHE [l gFal 3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Sin Lik Man ROX5E
(Chief Executive) (TTE#%) - 2,760 230 18 3,008
Ms. Sun Le 7t 3o - 1,800 150 18 1,968
Non-executive director FRTES
Ms. Sun Di gt 50 - - = 50
Independent non-executive directors B FRITES
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RRMEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wang Ye TEEE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Tang Kin Nam HEmrt
(appointed on 1 October 2021) MR-
+E—BEZA) 75 - - - 75
Mr. Wan Johnson EhREEE
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and MZBZ—&
with effect from 1 September 2021) “BZt+RHEET
Sy W= Rl =
iz yi) 63 = - - 63
478 4,560 380 36 5454
No director of the Company has waived any BE_S_FRZEZ"HF="A=+—

emoluments and no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group for the years ended

31 March 2023 and 2022.

HIEEE > AA B 2 &5 8 R E A
T MAEEREREMNESZNSENS
ERME FARSEMARERIINAZR
EER 2 52R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

10.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2022: two) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in notes 8. The aggregate
of the emoluments of the remaining two (2022: three)
individual are as follows:

R AL

rEBLBRESHFMNALTH =5 (TF
TTF W) REARRES EMEER
fistemE -Higmt (T "F : =4)
R AL 2S4BT ¢

2023 2022
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYHG 1,155 1,760
Discretionary bonuses IETEAT 84 146
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3B REF 5t & L 32 54
1,271 1,960
The emoluments of the two (2022: three) individuals mMECEIZF =) ke AT (T
(who are not director of the Company) with the highest EERABEE) 2INEBR TNEIHER :
emoluments are within the following bands:
2023 2022
ZEI=HF BT F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A# AZ
HKSnil - HK$500,000 T E500,00078 7T 0 1
HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000 500,001757T % 1,000,00078 7T 2 2
No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to BE S /KB _F=ZHA=1+—
any of the highest paid individuals as an inducement BIEFE AEETEATARSHMA
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation TENHENEANE (EABREMALX
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2023 and EESMA AR B R SR E o
2022.
DIVIDENDS 10. BE

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

EFETERRNBE_Z_=FR_F
T TF=RB=1+—HLEFEZEFKE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) PER SHARE

a)

b)

11. SREF (518)

Basic profit/(loss) per share a) SREREN (B8
Basic profit/(loss) per share is calculated SREAREN (BB HIREAR
by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year BHEAE AELENRF, (BB B
attributable to owners of the Company by the MER B ETE BRI TR
weighted average number of ordinary shares in Ho
issue during the year.
2023 2022
Profit/(loss) HH (B548)
Profit/(loss) for the year KRBHEEB A
attributable to owners of FEMLEREA] (B518)
the Company (HKS000) (%) 1,842 (5,452)
Number of shares 8B
Weighted average number of BEITEBER
ordinary shares in issue NHEF 58 21,084,072,140 21,084,072,140
Basic profit/(loss) per share SREAEN, (5B
(HK cent per share) (BB 1) 0.009 (0.026)

Diluted profit/(loss) per share

Diluted profit/(loss) per share for the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is the same as
the basic profit/(loss) per share as there is no
potential ordinary shares outstanding during
the years.

b)

SREBEEN  (5i8)
BHRFEATEBEZSBEREERT
O E B =GR T
FEZRA=t+—HIEEEEKE
SEiRF] S (518) BERERRT
(&518) AEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

12.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income.
The contributions from each of the employer and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

12.

B SR AEF

FEESBRBEEBERBEONEEMER
EERBEBRFME LB ERA > 2
HHEBESSERFIMEATBESE (T8
BEst8l)) RBTFEI A —ERBILE
SEA BB E MR IREE - RIFRE
2 BEREEHBREERRM
5%Z R BB FHER - EEIREESH
ZHAREE EIRAE F1,500%8 7w HiZP] B
FEMRR 5t8) Z fERBI RS R ©

AEET2E-—BERERMZEXEER
HREMNE - AEBZFENBRAEEE
19 7% R B B 48 2 B SR E IR AR IR AR A
SEIZHNE - ZEMBAB AR IEMNAE
ZIEB D LERBRIRER FHEI MR R
BRAIBR KRB E - AEE R IKEF 5B
ZH—BEEFHIEE MR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME -BEKRRE
(a) Property, plant and equipment (a) ME--BERZE
Plant, Furniture Construction
machinery and and Office Computer Motor Leasehold in
equipment fixtures equipment  equipment vehicles  improvements progress Total
HE Rk HEnz

RE  GARKE WAERE  RERR - ke fEIR &
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
77 FE1 77 7E7 77 71 77 7E7

Cost 72
At 1 April 2021 RZE--£MA-A 66,236 456 1,588 933 941 320 5691 76171
Additions RE 1,626 = 7 = = = 2461 4094
Transfer from CIP HEIEEA 2898 - 389 - - - (3287) -
Disposal HE (1449) - - - - - - (1,449)
Effect of foreign curency  SNEEREE7¥2

exchange differences 2,845 13 68 3 40 14 29 3212

M3IMarch202and  RZEZZEZF=+-RAK

1 April 2022 Z322EmA-A 72,156 469 2,052 936 987 334 5,004 82,028
Additions RE m - 168 - - - 2,728 3,007
Transfer from CIP HEIREA 2183 - - - - 252 (4,705) -
Written off s (47) - - - - - - (47)
Effect of foreign curency  SNEEREEZ¥E

exchange differences (5,295) (25) (145) (6) (76) (17) (379) (5,943)
At31 March 2023 RIEZ=f=A=1-H 68,684 444 2,075 930 9 2,839 2,738 78,621

Accumulated depreciation Z3HFERHEE
and impairment

At 1 April 2021 RIZZ-EMA-H 40,646 440 1432 863 947 4 - 44369
Charge for the year EEMb 5253 15 7 66 - 3% - 5447
Elimination on disposal £ 8 (1,291) - - - - - - (1,291)
Effect of foreign curency  SMEEREE %2

exchange differences 1776 14 58 3 | 2 - 1893

M3IMarch202and  RIEZZEZR=+-HRK

1 April 2022 Z5I2EMA-A 46,384 469 1,567 92 987 79 - 50418
Charge for the year FENR 2417 - 129 2 - 34 - 2,582
Elimination on written off  FA3 /35 (208) - - - - - - (208)
Effect of foreign curency  SMEERZEZ 772

exchange difference (3,402) (25) (108) (6) (76) (6) - (3,623)
At 31 March 2023 RZ8-=£=f=1-A 45191 444 1,588 928 M 107 - 49,169

Carrying amounts KEfE

At31 March 2023 RIEZZE=B=1-H 23,493 - 487 2 - 2732 2738 29452

At 31 March 2022 RZE__£=A=1-H 25,112 = 485 4 = 255 5,094 31,610
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ME- -BRER=ME (&)
(continued)
(b)  Right-of-use assets (b) EREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right- ZEAEERRNSI D 2 FRAREE
of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as REFEZ2MAOT :
follows:
2023 2022
—ECZ=fF B F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Ownership interests in leasehold FEERBEE T RIEFW
land and buildings held for mEERED AR
own use, carried at cost less TEESIER) » FIERIEERZ ©
depreciation with remaining lease
term of:
- Between 20 and 38 years ——t+EE=1+N\E
(2022: between 21 and 39 years) (=&
Zt+—E=+hIH) 3,104 3,426
Other leasehold land and buildings Efth B AHEE Lt KRigF
leased for own use, carried at cost (3G L ASIH T EE 71 BR)
less depreciation 13,211 20,370
16,315 23,796

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ME- -BRER=ME (&
(continued)
(b)  Right-of-use assets (continued) (b) FREEE @
The analysis of expense items in relation to RiBm P A EAERMN 1A
leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BzAWm@T :
2023 2022
—E-=F —E- =
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET

Depreciation charge for right-of-use 1% 1RREE E4BH ) H 2
assets by class of underlying asset: fFABEEEZINELH !
Ownership interests in leasehold HETHEREFH
land and building R EER 70 75

Other leasehold land and buildings EfthBAHEE Lt KiEF

leased for own use 5,644 6,022
5,714 6,097

Interest on lease liabilities HESENE (Bit6(a))
(note 6(a)) 631 889

Expense relating to short-term leases £248 HAFH & & Fl &8 27
and other leases with remaining RERN 2 AIAERN

lease term ending on or before HMAEARNMAX

end of the year 593 700
During the year, no additions to right-of-use FRUEERAEFEAREE (Z2
assets (2022: Nil). B SR 9 B
The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 NS =FHEMNRERHAREE
was approximately HK$9,564,000 (2022: #739,564,0008 T (CEZZF 1 4
approximately HK$6,885,000). 6,885,000/ 7T) °
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set HESENIEE DTN
out in note 22. 220
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

14.

GOODWILL 14. HE
2023 2022
—TZ=F . —
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Cost s
At beginning and at end of the year REDRER 5,368 5,368
Accumulated impairment loss RetiREREE
At beginning and at end of the year RER R ER (5,368) (5,368)
Carrying amount IREE - =
Others segment: Hithor4a :

For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill had
been allocated to a CGU which is principally engaged
in logistics businesses comprising warehousing,
transportation and cargo handling in Hong Kong
and PRC, and included under others segment. The
management considered Shing Kee International
Logistics Holdings Limited (“SKIL") together with its
subsidiary, Shing Kee Sea-land Logistics & Warehousing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (literally translation of f5352 /&R
A CFRYI) BIR/AE]) (“Sealand”) (collectively the
“SKIL Group”) is the CGU for allocation of goodwill as
synergies are derived in such arrangement.

BREASME  BEDROREREE
TEU (HEBREBRPELEYRE
HoAEeE -BERKEERE KA
HMDEET - EEERR > B ERY
MERERAR (TBELBIEY M) RH
MEARBLEEYRAE CRID ARA
8 (BBl (MM IRy RE
B BORBEZREELEM HAR
BRI BEr] EE W R W o
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET

15. HthEREE

Customer
relationship
TR %
HKS'000
FAET
Cost D%
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, RIZEZ—FMWA—H -T2
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 —B=FT—H-ZFEZFNA—HK
2T =F=RB=+—H 4,202
Accumulated amortisation and Rt R RE
impairment
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, AR —FNBE—HA - &F
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 =A=+—HA-ZEZ-FHEB—HBHK
e = EEE E S —[F 4,202
Carrying amount IREE
At 31 March 2023 RIEZ=F=A=+—H -
At 31 March 2022 A BT F=RA=+—H -
INVENTORIES 16. #F&
2023 2022
—EZ= —F_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Raw materials [R A4 948 1,416
Finished goods APl o 44,507 56,137
45,455 57,553

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as

RS LFARD 2 FETEZ DM

an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: W

2023 2022
—EZ= S

HKs’000 HKS000
FET FAET
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEEZREE 1,869,190 251,321
Written down of inventories EEMR - 1,682
1,869,190 253,003

ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 & ¥R 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

17.

TRADE RECEIVABLES FEW & 5 7R I8
2023 2022
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Trade receivables FEUN & 5 =18 1,386,755 100,340
Less: Loss allowance recognised o BERE R G (3,103) (1,420)
1,383,652 98,920

All of the trade receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

Note:
Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

trade receivables based on the invoice date or shipment date
and net of loss allowance recognised, is as follows:

FRERWE ZRNERRRK AR —FRI
=B

BREC DA
UFAREBEHRRERAHNBESEHHET

ZEWE ZHIE IR ERBEEERE) 2RI
DA

2023 2022

HK$'000 HKS'000

FET FHETT

0 - 60 days 0ZE60H 643,471 56,928
61 - 120 days 61E120H 326,165 9,106
121 - 180 days 121E180H 310,072 18,836
181 - 360 days 1812360H 103,944 14,050
Over 360 days 88360 H - -
1,383,652 98,920

Trade receivables are usually due within 360 days (2022: 360
days) from invoice date or shipment date. Further details on
the Group's credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in note 26(a).

EWE ZmIEREE RS E S B RSt
360H (CE - "4 :360H) REIEf - KREEEE
HEMBEVESHEEENEERRZ E—
T B E I M sE26(a) ©
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18.

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

FAfTRRIE s B2 R E BRI

RECEIVABLES
2023 2022
—EC=F BT F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Amount due from a non-controlling FEWLIE 2 IS 1 s 7R IE
interest (note (a)) (Ht5t(a)) 8,015 7,624
Other receivables HihpEw I 762 786
Trade deposits paid (note (d)) BB ST (HaE ) 321,625 402,992
Other deposits and prepayments HitiZe RFANRIEB 1,902 2,952
Other tax prepayments (note (c)) HhFaRIE B2 ) 185 200
Less: Loss allowance recognised A B EEE G
(notes (a) and (b)) (Hiz#(a) b)) (9,758) (10,472)
322,731 404,082
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENDTA -
Current assets MENE E 322,731 404,082
Non-current assets ERBEE - =
322,731 404,082
Notes: Mzt -
(a) The amount is secured by the shares in certain private (a) FELUZEREAEMBAILZIAAEG

limited companies incorporated in Hong Kong, one of
which being SKIL, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. It was interest-bearing at 5.01% per annum

and was due on 30 September 2017.

As at 31 March 2023, the balance is past due and
impairment allowance recognised of approximately
HK$8,015,000 (2022: approximately HK$7,624,000) is

provided.

RATZRMOREIEH Hp—fEAK
EEFEENBRAEBLEEY R -8
RAAIEIRERNR5.01%:t 8 RBR -2
—tENB=+HER-

RZBE_=ZF£=ZRA=+—H&&HE

780 HA NI e 5 A (B 435 1 498,015,000 78 7T
(ZEZZF  #7,624,000787T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

18.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Impairment of other receivables

Impairment losses recognised in respect of other
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the
amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
recognised is written off against other receivables
directly (see note 2(h)).

Movements in the loss allowance recognised

18.

BTRRIE R R B Ath R IR IR

(48)
WiaE - (&)
b  EMEREREZ RHE

BREMEWNTIEZ ERERERED
ERBARLIR RIFEEREAIKD
B RRIEZ o) e IR E R R B 5% > FEUIE
BERT BERREBIEEEZEMEE
fthAEUERIE (RHIEE2(h)) ©

ERE A A B G > 28

2023 2022
g = -
Note HKS$’000 HKS'000
By &t FHET FAET
At beginning of the year RED 10,472 8,040
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ 18 (B [EREEE) EREsR
impairment loss recognised  JA{EETE
to profit or loss (i) (541) 2,424
Exchange adjustment (& 2 (173) 8
At end of the year RER (i) 9,758 10,472
Note: Vioi=a
(i) At 31 March 2023, loss allowance in respect (i) RN _E_=F=H=+—8 -

of other receivables of the Group including
amount due from a non-controlling
interest, other receivables and deposits and
prepayments amounting to approximately
HK$9,758,000 (2022: approximately
HK$10,472,000) were recognised by the
Group. The major impaired receivables were
outstanding for over 1 year at the end of the
reporting period and were due from a non-
controlling interest with financial difficulties.

The other tax prepayments represent the prepaid
value-added tax in PRC which can be utilised to offset
the value-added tax payable arising from the future
sales of the subsidiaries operating in PRC.

At 31 March 2023, trade deposits of approximately
HK$321,625,000 (2022: approximately HK$402,992,000)
were paid by the Group to the suppliers for secure the
procurement volume and purchase of merchandise and
raw materials which can be recognised as purchases
after the year end date upon the delivery of the
merchandise and raw materials to the Group.

At 31 March 2023, an impairment loss on trade
deposits approximately HK$1,159,000 (2022:
approximately HK$2,106,000) has been recognised.

AEBEEIDEMAERHE M
FE U RIS > B 45 FE UK JE R AR
7R 18~ E AR UL R IE U R 32
ERBNRBEZGEEEESS
9,758,000/ T (ZEZZF | &9
10,472,000787T) c EAREZ
R ERIER N R E AR BB
—ENE PEHEB RS
22 R 2 Y FE LUK I o

HitBARIBETEEAMEER  HA
FBEIRESTE P B E 2 [ B AR R 2R
ETHEMELE Z BB ER -

A B =ZE=ZHA=1t—H &&=
B HERE 8 5 % $4321,625,00058 7T
(Z] 4 : 49402,992,0005 7T) L
BERREEREEEYREME > B
SHEARAEBRNEY RREM T
FHHBRDEARBERE

RE_=F=ZRA=+—H BEEIE
S¥EZ HERE%91,159,0008 7t (=
T "4 492,106,000 7T) °
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19. REAAEEEYREMRER
OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION 28N
(a) Cash and cash equivalents (a) HERIREEEY
2023 2022
—E-=HF B F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHEIRE 7,532 9,018
Cash and cash equivalents in the ReEMBRRRKR
consolidated statement of financial “ZAaRE&ERERT
position and the consolidated HERIBEEEY
statement of cash flows 7,532 9,018

Note:

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates.

At 31 March 2023, cash and cash equivalents
situated in Mainland China amount to
approximately HK$36,000 (2022: approximately
HK$16,000). Remittance of funds out of
Mainland China is subject to relevant rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control.

fisz -

RTRERE BRTERNEZFEHF
ES ST

N_E_=F=RA=+—H >up
FEAMPNRERRSSEVNS
36,0005 7T (ZEZ 24 : 416,000
BIT) cESEHPEAMBEREST
TEREINE & 5 B9 FR B B2 AR B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19. RERREEFEYREMRER
OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION EER (8
(continued)
(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) RMEBEFBRELERAZHIE

financing activities

Lease
liabilities
HeamE
HKS'000
FAET
(note 22)
(Bt5#22)
At 1 April 2021 R-E_—&[MA—H 21,836
Changes from financing cash flows MERTREEH (6,885)
Exchange adjustments PE 2 A 834
Interest expense FERX 889
At 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 RIE__F#=HA=+—HX
RZZZ—FmMA—H 16,674
Changes from financing cash flows MERSREEH) (9,564)
Exchange adjustments P B A (1,252)
Interest expense FEREEZ 631
At 31 March 2023 RIZZ=%F
EB=ET—E 6,489
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

TRADE PAYABLES 20. EHEZME
2023 2022
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Trade payables P& B 5 7718 1,280,023 45,840
Notes: Htat -
(a) Trade payables are expected to be settled within one (a) BB SZFIBFERRN —FEANZ e
year.
(b) Ageing analysis (b) BRER DT

As the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade payables based on the invoice date or

shipment date is as follows:

UTFAREEHRRERARNELEH
22BN EZRIRZRE DI

2023 2022
—EZ= B F

HK$'000 HK$’000

FAET FAET

0 - 60 days 0E60H 625,434 40,522
61 - 120 days 61E120H 301,978 570
121 - 180 days 12121804 296,815 86
181 - 360 days 18123604 50,810 24
Over 360 days B48360H 4,986 4,638
1,280,023 45,840
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

21. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

21. BFER BRERAEMEMRIEA

PAYABLES
2023 2022
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Accruals and other payables FEST & A R H e 718 31,230 37,451

Note:

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are

repayable on demand.

22. LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2023 and 2022, the lease liabilities are

repayable as follows:

Mt -

22, THE&E

H-HE&BEEESALT

st ERREMBEARBELBABRIN —FA
KA SRR A WA TR ERER ©

N B =ZER B _FE=R=+—

2023 2022

ZBZ= E-CE
Present value Total Present value Total
of minimum minimum of minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments
RIEAE RIEHE REHE RIEAE
fIMRE RELEE MRE NEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET
Within 1 year —ER 1,196 1,618 1,063 1,746
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERER 5,293 5,510 6,531 6,986
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBEBRER - - 9,080 9315
6,489 7,128 16,674 18,047
Less: total future interest expenses e Sl SE Rk (639) (1373)
Present value of lease liabilities HEEERE 6,489 16,674

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

Current taxation in the consolidated (a) i

=
N

statement of financial position represents:

P
[=]

mAEMBRARZEAFR

MBRRRZ BHRIALS ©

2023 2022
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
At beginning of the year REH) 2,964 5,187
Provision for the year KEEHEHE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 7(a)) —&BFEH (H15E7(a) - =
- PRC EIT (notes 7(a)) —RE B EFRISIR
(Hzt7(a)) 2,031 967
,,,,,, 2,031 DU
Over-provision in respect BEFEBRER
of prior years
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 7(a)) —&BFSH (H15E7(a)) - =
- PRCEIT (notes 7(a)) —RE B EFRISIR
(Hft7(a)) - (2,367)
,,,,,,,,, - P
Income tax paid FRENPIER
during the year
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BAENER - -
- PRCEIT — B EFRIEIR (1,483) (1,006)
o has (001
Effect of foreign currency exchange EREREZFE
differences (216) 183
At end of the year RER 3,296 2,964
Representing: &
Tax recoverable P EITRIE - =
Tax payable FE(TIRIE 3,296 2,964
At end of the year MRER 3,296 2,964
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23  F %R 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

23.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised
The components of deferred tax
assets and liabilities recognised in the

(i)

consolidated statement of financial

position and the movements during the

year are as follows:

23.

maMBRARZEAFR (@)

(b) CHRIVEERFEERER

0]

Depreciation

HEEHBRRAERR
EIERIEE R S ES 5
RIS ERHBEIT :

Depreciation

allowances in excess
in excess of related
of related depreciation
depreciation allowances Total
e rEEB
TR TR RA T ES
HERA T ES RHEE “ast
Deferred tax arising from: HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
EEMIERE : FET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2021 RIEZ—%F
B —H 66 (41) 25
Charged to profit or loss NEBER
(note 7(a)) (Ht5%7(a)) - 1 1
At 31 March 2022 and i ——
1 April 2022 =HA=+—H
RZIBEZZHF
mA—H 66 (40) 26
Charged to profit or loss MNkrBE#8E=E
(note 7(a)) (Htat7(a)) - 1 1
At 31 March 2023 KZE_=
EE=ET=—E 66 (39) 27
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23. FEHBRARZEAER (@)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised (continued)

(b) CRVEERBEERER @&

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated (if) FEMBER TR

statement of financial position:

2023 2022
HK$’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Deferred tax assets RiFE MR RER 2 IR
recognised in the LERIEE =
consolidated statement of
financial position (39) (40)
Deferred tax liabilities RiFE MR RER 2 IR
recognised in the LERIEEE
consolidated statement of
financial position 66 66
27 26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZEZE T _=F=FA=+—HLEE

23.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$124,159,000
(2022: approximately HK$76,973,000)
and approximately HK$11,142,000 (2022:
approximately HK$13,214,000) available for
offset against future profits that may be carried
forward indefinitely and with expiry date of
within 5 years, respectively. No deferred tax
assets have been recognised in respect of the
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards.

At 31 March 2023, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to approximately
HK$80,486,000 (2022: approximately
HK$81,301,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of approximately HK$4,024,000 (2022:
approximately HK$4,065,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

n/\

(c)

(d)

BMBRRARZAER (&)

REEDIRIERIBE =
RIEBEZ=F=H=+—H'&&
[E < 5) A iR TEE51849124,159,00078
7_5 (ZZ = — 4 : 976,973,000 7T)

F2#911,142,00078 70 (ZF - 4 .
2713 214,00078 7T) B A3 LUK 35 R 2k

w0 M B 2 A FE PR HRAE B R Y
EEW A e MR BETEAI R K&
AR » (R R TR TE RS 1B R 5B IR
ERIBEE

RERZIBLEREER
RIBEREEZEPRSRE > IR
BRAEN _EENE—A—AMUE
PREREN 2 im A Bk Z B B AR TR
H#

RIEZ=F=F=+—H8> &
B AR RS KmAERE 2 R ERE
#)7380,486,0008 70 (T - " F :
#981,301,00038 7T) © EEEAZSQ}N’E
HZERBARZREBEK  BR
HZERBRANAARAER T R
RAIEH 2Kk BT ER D IKZEE
A 2 IR B RIRIER B A A
#4,024,0008 T (ZTEZ2F | &9
4,065,00038 7T) °
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24,

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 24. RAEREE
The reconciliation between the opening and (a) AEBGEERSAME DR FL]
closing balances of each component of the RERERZHBRFN IR
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the R oA RNBEZERERAMRIB AR
consolidated statement of changes in equity. FYERFR EEFFUWT ¢
Details of the changes in the Company'’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
Share Share Merger Capital Contributed Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
ke RGEE AfEE  ESHE  BABRR  RHEH i
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
FET FE7 & AT FET FE7 &
At 1 April 2021 RZE-—-&MA—H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (29,681) 54,795
Loss for the year FEERR - - - - = (11,873) (11,873)
Total comprehensive expenses  AEE2ERZEEH
for the year - - - - - (11,873) (11,873)
At 31 March 2022 RIEZZF=A=1+-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (41,554) 42922
At 1 April 2022 RZE-__&NA-A 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (41,554) 42,922
Loss for the year rEEFRR - - - - - (5918) (5918)
Total comprehensive expenses ~ AEE2EHTAE
for the year - - - - - (5,918) (5918)
At 31 March 2023 RIZZ=F=A=+-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (47,472) 37,004
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

24.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(c)

24. RRAKFHEE (B)

Share capital (b) K&
2023 2022
ZECZ= St -3
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RH%E &8 RHEE &8
HK$'000 HKS000
FET FET
Authorised: B
Atthe beginningand atthe  IRENRER
end of the year (ordinary (BREE0.0002E T
shares of HK$0.0002 each) 2 B 1K) 500,000,000,000 100,000 500,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
Ordinary shares of SREE0.00028 T
HK$0.0002 each LBk
Atthe beginningand atthe  IRENRER
end of the year 21,084,072,140 4,217 21,084,072,140 4217

The owner of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”) and Bye-laws of the Company.

Merger reserve

On 6 January 2003, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies then comprising the Group
pursuant to a group reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”)
at the time of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange. The
merger reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of a former
subsidiary of the Company acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation
and the nominal value of the Company'’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

(c)

ZEREEANBREBRATREIRZ
RE LB ENARTDKRE LAE
RERMKR—F-FMEZERNAER

BRI ER

BEEHEZAREMAL -

HETEERAR

(i)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &

24, CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the fair value
adjustment on the amounts due to
the former ultimate holding company
and the former immediate holding
company at initial recognition, deemed
capital contribution from the former
immediate holding company on the
date of extension of repayment and
waiver of amount due to the former
ultimate holding company.

Statutory reserves

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
certain PRC subsidiaries in the Group
are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after tax to the
statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of their registered capital.
Transfers to this reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to
shareholders.

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group engaged
in business involving the prescribed
dangerous goods are required to
appropriate certain of their profit,
calculated based on regressive rate
ranging from 0.5% to 4% applied
on the revenue of that entity, to the
statutory reserve. This specific reserve
can be utilised when expenses or
capital expenditures on production
safety measures are incurred. The
amount of this reserve utilised would be
transferred from the reserve account to
retained profits.

24. RRAKF#EE (&)

iR E MBS R R MY sE

E_E_—F=H=1+—HIEEE

(0 fEFEEERRAZR (&

(iii)

(iv)

B

BEARRBERR D BN
FEAT Al & R IE IR A B e Al
ERERABDREBZAR
BZRBE - RNERERAH
WERAEERERATZ
B R B o FE A A B AR

RABRIA

A E

RBEBEROPEENR A&
BzETHENBARR
1 EBRIR B A T D1 10%
BELIERFE BELS
EEEZEMEDRZ50%%
k- ARAMBELAR BRE
DRI BRI E A o

RIFBEANPEER A&
ERESIREEGKRDE
KW ENB AR ERE
RZERWAERNS%E
A% REXGTTHENE TR
MBBELEHB %2
RENEEEZRERBHE
ERETHERST HEET U
A -ZHEECSHRESER
FfAERELERE A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

24.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the
Company at the end of the reporting
period represented the credit arising
from the transfer of the share premium
account of the Company to the
contributed surplus account of the
Company as reduced by amounts
transferred from the contributed
surplus account of the Company to
set off the accumulated losses of the
Company.

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note
2(t).

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

24.

AR (R ()

(c)

(d)

REEERRBZR (@)

)  BEHEE
REBEEHR AR ZES
BEFIERFHAE QT RN &
BRBEEARTEHR
BRIRFTEEZ ERETRR B
FEREEAATDERAE
BRARFTE B A LURH A A
BREHBEZ B

i) EREHE

EREESEMERKRE
BINEBZ M BRERME
EZERE R - LR
E2OPE B 5T BURERIE

HAEE
AEMERHERNENABBE
B B 2 P M L R 1 T 10 BRR
AEENEERTHESE [
BEBERHERABR ALK
B 20 BUB B R o

FABEREMRTBEEREF
R — D BEEZBELRK
TR EEB/EAERZ AR R
EFER AEEBEBETNR
KB B] B fn AR S 1T R B AR Bl 3R
ERR LT EHHEBEEARARE-

KA R EAEMAN B AR RESE
SNFREFHEINEYE A EFR IR
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24, CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 24.

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

Capital management (continued) (d)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is total borrowings divided by
equity plus total borrowings. Equity represents
equity attributable to owners of the Company.
The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting
periods is as follows:

RRA R (4)

BEAEE (@)
rEBEEAEESRBILE RNRE
ERUEDMEEES) EREX-
BmisAREHER A GREE -1
WERRZEERGBLEROT

2023 2022

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Total borrowings wEE - =
Equity attributable to owners of the ZSA TR A E(EHER

Company 493,206 531,077

Equity and total borrowings EmhEEE 493,206 531,077

Gearing ratio BEAMEBLEE Nil Nil

=z =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

25.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 27
August 2012 for the purpose of providing incentives
to eligible participants and the previous share option
scheme of the Company adopted on 6 January 2003
was terminated on the same date. Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will be valid and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the date of adoption. The purpose
of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to attract, retain and motivate talented participants
to strive for future development and expansion of
the Group. The Share Option Scheme shall provide
incentive to encourage participants to perform their
best in achieving the goals of the Group and allow
the participants to enjoy the results of the Company
attained through their efforts and contributions.
Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include any individual being an employee, officer,
agent, consultant or representatives of any member of
the Group (including any executive or non-executive
director of any member of the Group) who, as the
Board may determine in its absolute discretion, has
made valuable contribution to the business of the
Group based on his/her performance and/or years of
service, or is regarded to be a valuable human resource
of the Group based on his/her working experience,
knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within thirty days from the date of grant, provided that
no such grant shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the period of ten years commencing on the
adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or after
the Share Option Scheme has been terminated. The
amount payable by each grantee of options to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
options is HK$1.00.

25.

REGHURMARRZRZS

KABIRZE—ZFENBZ+TtHZE]T
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise
of options under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to the
relevant participant at the time of grant of the options
(subject to any adjustments made pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme and the relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules) made to (subject to acceptance by)
the participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date on
which the option is granted, which date must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is granted; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the
option period after the option has been granted by the
Board but in any event, not longer than ten years from
the date of grant.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant, together with all options granted and to
be granted to him/her under any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company within the 12-month
period immediately preceding the proposed date of
grant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.
Any further grant of options to a participant in excess
of the 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders with such participant and his/
her associates abstaining from voting.

25.

%E%EUEH%E%ZQ%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

25.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The limit on the total number of the shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (excluding lapsed and cancelled options)
must not exceed 30% of the total number of the shares
in issue from time to time. In addition, the total number
of the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company (excluding
lapsed options), must not represent more than 10% of
the total number of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) or as at the date of approval of the
refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit as the case may be.
As at 31 March 2023, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 1,085,407,210 shares.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross
in shares.

The Share Option Scheme was expired in August 2022
and no new share option scheme is adopted.

25.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

26. %ﬁIﬂZ%ﬁm@ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁ

INSTRUMENTS
The Group’s major financial instruments include the AEBZFETHTAGREFNIEIE !
followings:
Categories of financial instruments ERTHEZ 485
2023 2022
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Financial assets EMEE
Trade receivables FEW B 5 18 1,383,652 98,920
Amount due from a non-controlling interest [& W JE12 BG 18 25 =0 18 Kz
and other receivables H e =18 363 399
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 7,532 9,018
Financial assets at amortised cost BB A ST EC SREE 1,391,547 108,337
Financial liabilities ERaE
Trade payables FET B S8 1,280,023 45,840
Accruals and other payables FEST & A R H e T8 31,230 37,451
Lease liabilities HEAE 6,489 16,674
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BMIER AT IR SR EE 1,317,742 99,965

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The main risks arising from the
Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures

EHT
THT
FEE
Rz
588

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

(a) Credit risk

(a)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty

will default on its contractual obligations

resulting in financial loss to the Group. The

Group's credit risk is primarily attributable

to trade receivables. The Group’s exposure

to credit risk arising from cash and

cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks, which the
Group considers to have low credit risk.

BB ERANETRE AEH
BEEZETZRBAEERE R
R FREERERERRE A
FRBZHRENTITX -EEER
REEZERRE UREENRE

RERBUE E HE I o

EERE
FERBEXZHFEREGNE
EMERNAERRZHFHERZE
BoAEHEERRTIERBRE
WESHRIE AEREEREHE
RREEFEMZEERRER
REFHREERFZRT &&
BoRFRTHEARBZEER

A
an O
AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

26.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk
management policy under which individual
credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are usually due within 360
days from the invoice date or shipment date.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk in industries or countries in which the
customers operate. Significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period, 90% (2022:
44.2%) and 96% (2022: 86.5%) of the total trade
receivables is due from the Group’s largest trade
debtor and the three largest trade debtors
respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

26.
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for

trade receivables:

26.

TMIAZHBREREERAR
& (@

(a) SE R (&)
FEWE 5B (&
TREHREANRAEEZEERRMU
KREWEZREZRRAEERRE !

2023
—EZ=
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHARS IR =X IRME4A{E ERRE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FET FHET
Current (not past due) BRHR (GR#A1HR) 0.15-0.34 1,269,190 2,038
1-30 days past due BHI1ZE30H 0.15-0.34 62,873 121
31-60 days past due BHA31E60H 0.15-0.34 - -
61-90 days past due #HI61ZE90H 0.15-0.34 - -
More than 90 days past due 1 EAB3#E90H 0.15-1.00 54,692 944
1,386,755 3,103
2022
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TERARTIE X IREAEE EiaEE
% HKS'000 HKS'000
% FAET FAET
Current (not past due) BRHR (R#A1HR) 0.55-0.64 57,261 333
1-30 days past due BHAI1ZE30H 0.64 9,164 58
31-60 days past due BHA31E60H 0.64 10,597 67
61-90 days past due #HA61290H 0.64 8,359 53
More than 90 days past due 1 EAB3#E90H 0.64-1.00 14,959 909
100,340 1,420
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26 EMIAZMBRAKEERAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL & (&
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) =B RS (%)
Trade receivables (continued) FENE Z 7018 ()
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss FEHBEEXTLERATFEENER
experience over the past years. These rates R B ZELEREHAR
are adjusted to reflect differences between DA BR % U £ FRE S 243 HA FE P RO A
economic conditions during the period over T AR O ~ AR T £ A 5 [ FE U
which the historic data has been collected, FIETERA A A FEHAKER RN E
current conditions and the Group’s view of EZBENER
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.
Receivables that were past due but not ERHAEERE BB
impaired related to customers that had a RAEEBEERFFEATSR LR
good track record with the Group. Based on Fo-RBaTFER EEERAE
past experience, management believed that A ZEER IR AR ER B
no impairment allowance was necessary in FERAGEEERTEERES M
respect of these balances as there had been ZEERDFERA 2 EUE -
no significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.
Movement in the loss allowance account in TLEW E ZRIBHE 2 B IR ER
respect of trade receivables during the year is RARFEZEEWT .
as follows:
2023 2022
—t- -
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FET
Balance at beginning of the year REY) 2 467 1,420 1,664
Impairment losses recognised/ RAFEZ BRI E
(Reversal of impairment losses) B8, (BEIREER)
during the year 1,782 (239)
Exchange adjustment B (99) (5)
Balance at end of the year RERZ EER 3,103 1,420
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

TMIAZHBREREERAR
& (@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk (b) REBEZRME
The cash management policy of the Group AEEZREBEEBRRBEURE
includes short-term investment of cash BEFRETRARSE UREEER
surpluses and raising of loans to cover expected FEMEAREFTE - AEBZEEK
cash demands. The Group's policy is to regularly AERSERBATAEATHESS
monitor its current and expected liquidity ERETBELFZ 2B UER
requirements and its compliance with lending HEREH 2 HEHEBERREEE
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient BEEREZ EKEEREE > LN
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines HIEPEERIARHESE R AE
of funding from major institutions to meet BRBEREBESRIRTTRRES
its liquidity requirements in the short and HEHRshEts2EEZRR
long term. The Group relies on its liquid funds
and bank advances as significant sources of
liquidity.
The following tables set out the remaining TREFIASEBNETESHER
contractual maturities at the end of the R|EARZBG TEOEEBER
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative ThIRBEEARMIBIRES R (B1ER
financial liabilities, which are based on BEAF XY MaFE) RREH
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including FAZERMNEABEZMENR &
interest payments computed using contractual AEBARERERZEFEBHE
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the Ho
end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.
2023
=
Total
contractual
Within undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flow amount
BRRMR
®REX R—FR —-ERE ZELE RERENH BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TiEn TR TR

Non-derivative financial EfiESHaE:
liabilities:
Trade payables ERES7E - 1,280,023 - - 1,280,023 1,280,023
Accruals and other payables Bt B R REMBMIIE - 31,230 - - 31,230 31,230
Lease liabilities HEAE - 1,618 5,510 - 7,128 6,489
- 1,312,871 5,510 - 1,318,381 1,317,742
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AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 260 ERMTAZUFERAMBERERAD
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL =€)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HEBEZEAMRK (&)
2022
- Sl
Total
contractual
Within undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flow amount
BHERER
BEX R—ER —EfE ZERE ReReln fRAE
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial EfiESHasE:
liabilities:
Trade payables ENESHE - 45,840 - - 45,840 45,840
Accruals and other payables Bt BRREMBMINIE - 37,451 - - 37,451 37,451
Lease liabilities HEAE - 1,746 6,986 9315 18,047 16,674
- 85,037 6,986 9,315 101,338 99,965
(c) Interest rate risk (c) F 2= &

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances (see note 19(a) for details) and
fair value interest rate risk mainly in relation to
fixed-rate amount due from a non-controlling
interest (see note (a) of note 18 for details).

Interest rate risks are managed by the Group by
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed
and variable rate financial instruments.

AxEBE—BERMTIAZANE
FARRFERERTIHH REBT
HIRRB AR AEBBLF SR
T GHBRMNE190) KRR
MENXRR REEMEWRIFE
D2 ERBNE FHERMFE8
thiffEE(@) ©

FEREBEMERBZHERER
ABEGZERKRFEREMIA
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZE T _=F=-HFA=+—HLEE

TMIAZHBREREERAR
& (@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2023, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 5% (2022: 5%) in interest
rates for variable-rate financial instruments,
with all other variables held constant, would
have increased/decreased the Group's profit
after tax and the increased/decreased Group's
retained profits by approximately HK$376,000
(2022: decreased the Group’s loss after tax
and the increased the Group's retained profits
by approximately HK$450,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable-rate bank balances. Other
components of the Group’s consolidated equity
would not change in response to the general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 5% (2022: 5%) increase/decrease
in interest rates is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2022.

(c)

FERER (&)

SR EDHT
RZEZ=%=H=+—08 st
W2 EEm T EFIREE F7
TBEFS%(_E:: 15%) MFTA
& Bl AREE B
%ﬁfﬁm%lﬁbﬂ/ﬁ"\&ﬁ%ﬂ%
BRim A 180, Rl £9376,00078 7T
(CZEBEZZF AEEZKRRES
B R A E B 2 R R 18 04T
450,000 7T)  TEHFRERNRAEER
FrEY 2 ZBIRITEFANE KRE
Eirom 2 AR D BT
R R EF IR IRE
@jo

EHBRAE D HRBIREHR
ﬁﬁ&ixzﬂzﬂﬁ BE - DiTRR
BEHRAEEETHMTENEESE
ﬁfﬁfﬁﬁLﬁ‘iw% RAETEEE
A E AN EBER & R R T ARF =R
735% (ZEZ 7 1 5%) F KA
//FJZ"\ ) M7 E PR sT (A ) R F]
FEHIRZ GEEH - AR D MIREA
:giiﬁﬁﬂzgiﬁé%&ﬁ"
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 260 TRHTHAZHBERMEERRAD
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL & (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (d) EEER

160

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) BrRZ 2 B MR fE
The Group is exposed to currency risk AEEBFEREEEEM

primarily through sales and purchases
which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in a foreign currency, that
is, a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which
the transactions relate. In addition, the
Company has intra-group balances with
several subsidiaries denominated in
foreign currencies which also expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.
The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily USD and RMB. The Group
manages this risk as follows:

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group closely monitors the net
exposure and will enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge
against the Group's currency exposure it
considered necessary.

The following details the Group’s
exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKS, translated using the
spot rates at the end of the reporting
period. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group's
presentation currency are excluded.

ARXERRER FHEES
EELSMNE RIS AR
B IMEEEUIINZEH)
sHE Z FEWRIA ~ FE Y 7R IR
RRERERBEEEY - I
Sh > BRBVEZ BB A F]
ZEEEMINESENE
ER&ES BEAsEEE
BROINE ELRR - B2 IR R R
ZEBUETRARES
F-rEREERERRZ
HWE -

CHRIEERERE
U SEZHEMEE
REREME AEEERY)
BERRARFE UK ILE
HASNES A BUR 025
HhAERZEBER-

DUFsrat A~ S B h 3R & H
R AERMBRINEER
BUsh 2z G ¥ 5t E ~ B HE R
BEENEEAZZEKR
RoMEREM FIAZRA
R LELBITES BT
RARSHARZRITESR
TE o REINEFR M BR
KBMBESEAER 258
BREEZ ZRRTEZS -



26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M BRI

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 260 TRMTHZHMBRAKREERAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL & (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) (d) EERER (@)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) RS2 BIEERE (&)

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$)

SNSRI (U ETTEIR)
2023 2022
—8”=f% B —-
uss RMB uss RMB

=T ARE £7T ARK
HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000
FET FET TET TET

Trade receivables R EZE 1,275,784 - 35,254 -
Other receivables HitEewa - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 6,708 166 845 208
Trade payables ENEZRE (1,271,013) - (35,820) =

Net exposure arising from recognised BFERE E R A EBFIELE
assets and liabilities Z P 11,479 166 279 208
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #ZEZE T _=F=FA=+—HLEE

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 260 TRHTHAZHBERMEERRAD
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL & (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d)  Currency risk (continued) (d) EBERER (@)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (ii) SREZT

The following tables indicate the
instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit/(loss) after tax (and retained
profits) and other comprehensive
income that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the HK$ and the USD
would not be materially affected by
any changes in movement in value of
the USD against other currencies. The
increase/(decrease) in foreign exchange
rates of 5% represents the sensitivity
rate of management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible strengthening/
(weakening) of the foreign currency
against the functional currencies of the
group entities.

TRATRHAEERNRS
HARARERNEAR ZEX
REBAEMES RKFT
EEMEBHERTE K&
EiriRgiEF (B18) (&
RBiEF) REMEHE WS
ZEIJE#H LU S > &
PRRBTERTZHE
EzTﬁli_"Eﬂﬂ

yf‘UE 2 Eztﬁ/
(P2 5%7% B 18 FrsT
BN ERERER I
S BHRZFAES
(2B <BRELEX-

2023 2022
—E”= - -
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) Increase/  Increase/  (decrease) (Decrease)/ Increase/
inforeign  (decrease) (decrease) in foreign increase  (decrease)
exchange in profit inretained  exchange inloss in retained
rates after tax profits rates after tax profits
BiE  RERN BiRe  REBEN
Bt EREM B EXEAF BEED) 181

/(FB) /D) /D)
HK$'000  HKS'000

/ (FE&) J8m /@)
HKS'000  HKS$ 1000

FET FET FET FET

RMB AR 5% 8 8 5% (10) 10
(5%) (8) (8) (5%) 10 (10)

Us$ ETT 5% 574 574 5% (14) 14
(5%) (574) (574) (5%) 14 (14)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #( &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an
aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’
profit or loss after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HKS$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2022.

In management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent foreign exchange risk
because the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect
the exposure during the year, at the
USD denominated liabilities are with
different maturity dates and the
changes in foreign exchange rates may
not be steady throughout the year.

(ii)

iR E MBS R R MY sE

TEC=F=A=+—HLEFE

TMIAZHBREREERAR
& (@

BEEREE (8

HRE T (&)

LR EY DA 4
AEREEBEBEUZBAY
FEERFEZRREET
Y 65 18 R fE o Y B By 52 &
MBE DR SRR E R
ERMERABTEY]

BRE DT REEEN
BEHEEBAREMTER
EERRSHERMFES
7 €5 B m BRI HE R BR Y &
MTAMEBET -BRADITEZ
HTE T _EHRZEE
AT

BERERR > AR UETS
BZERAETRNEH
HR2ENIHEEXES
RUIBTE  ERRHREHAR
Y L B2 I R e BR A 9 B9 R
o BEURE DT AR
&5 A9 51 BE & R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following material
related party transactions:

Key management personnel compensation

All members of key management personnel are the
directors of the Company, and the remuneration for
them during directorship is disclosed in note 8 and
total remuneration for them (including amounts paid to
them as employee of the Group prior to appointment
as directors) in the year as follows:

27.

EAAEALRS

REBMEFTLTIHERFAEALRS !

FTEEEASHM
FIETEEEABHREAABZESE K
ERERESHE WS ENM e E
REERFANZHMEE (BFEZES
EFEVHERAERREEINTRENS
88) I -

2023 2022
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET

Salaries and other short-term employee e REMEIAREE G
benefitst 5,287 5,418
Post-employment benefits BERBET 38 36
5,325 5,454

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

M4RzEE st A TE IR A (RMFEE6(b))

6(b)). Ao
28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. BEAKIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the RESHRT I EHAEISEBRZERKR
end of the reporting period but not recognised as BERMBZWT
liabilities is as follows:
2023 2022
—E= -
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Contracted for but not provided for in ERESL A AN =
the consolidated financial statements AR B
— acquisition of property, plant and — NI R B e sk i
equipment 14,849 =
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29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &

i

—

REMBRRMEE
ZEZA=+—BLEE

SUBSIDIARIES 29. MIEBAR

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RIE_=F=B=1+—HZFEREBA

March 2023: T :

Place of
establishment or Particulars of
incorporation/ Class of issued and Attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary business shares held  paid up capital equity interest activities
PR ML,
WEAE%E ‘e BREN  BRETRBERSZHE FEfb R A i TEREH
2023 2022
ZEIZE ZZICE

Indirectly held

MERE

China Mining Industrial Import &  Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2022: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and sale of
Export Company Limited metal minerals and

related industrial
materials

HEBFELOEZERAT  &E g 1RBH REREETRER

CBZZERER) WRIEELER
#
Global Metal Industrial Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2022: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and sale of
Limited metal minerals and
related industrial
materials
2REBEEERAT &4 ] 1R REKRHEETER
CBZZF kEkR) MREBIER
#

New Provenance Everlasting Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2022: 1 share) 100% 100%  Provision of
Management Company Limited management

services

MRBIEERERAF ¥ i 30 REHERRE

CBZZERER)

EREBRRERR PRC Registered ~ RMB77,365,215 100% 100%  Production and
BHNRARAR (2022: RMB77,365,215) sale of industrial
(literally translated as “Ningxia products
Huaxia Integrated Waste
Recycling Company Limited”)

(note) (1)
ol At AEH77,365.2157 LERBETXA
C2zZF: Em
AR H77,365,2157)

Note:
owned enterprise.

Registered under the laws of PRC as wholly-foreign-

Kiat -

RIBETBIEBIZEMBIEEERE-
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AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

30. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 30. RABEEEZMBRAER
FINANCIAL POSITION
2023 2022
Note HKs’000 HKS'000
Mzt FAET FAET
Non-current assets IERENE ZE
Investments in subsidiaries RBABIZIRE - =
Current assets MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and TN RIE B M E A E
other receivables W IB 103,100 84,434
Cash and cash equivalents HERIBEEEY 532 7,137
103,632 91,571
Current liabilities Pt ZB=RE
Accruals, deposits and other EETE R s R EAME
payables IFRIE 66,628 48,649
Net assets BERE 37,004 42,922
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ZNAT A AEILER
the Company
Share capital 5% 24(b) 4,217 4,217
Reserves =i 32,787 38,705
Total equity R 37,004 42,922
31. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 31. GeHhstKRHIER
JUDGEMENTS
(a) Critical accounting judgements (a) FEFHHIE
Impairment of financial assets B EE

The loss allowance for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Details
of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in the tables in note 26(a).

THEESBREESENHEY
B3R B IRE 2 R met & o
AEBMUEEHZERZLEZERE
AENEAER S RBRAERNGE
KE-RAMBEREURRERS
HAZR B9 A B M BT 4 1T 1 i o BRI 3R
B =L IUNEEI N s
26(a) 2 7% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #( &

31. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions

concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

(i)

Estimated impairment of non-financial
assets

Determining whether there is an
impairment requires an estimation
of recoverable amounts of the non-
financial assets or the respective CGU in
which the non-financial assets belong,
which is the higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. If there
is any indication that an asset may be
impaired, recoverable amount shall be
estimated for individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the
Group shall determine the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise
from the assets or CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The discount rate
represents a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the future cash flow estimates
have not been adjusted. Where the
actual future cash flows or the revision
of estimated future cash flows are less
than original estimated future cash flow,
a material impairment loss may arise.

31.

(b)

iR e M BRI

TEC=F=A=+—HLEFE

Bt st R F iR (&)

fhEst FEERRZ EERIE

UTF#mIRBBZEEZRR

> LUK

REBSHARERIEERN T —@
PREEAREEKRERREEF
RERFBZERERZ THEER

RZHMEERR
(i) FEMEEZ GG AE

EERSFELRERBMG
STERAFEMEENIFS
MEEMBEREELES
fiiz ] iR El& %8 > Bl 5 AR E
BEAMEBBRLEMREZ
BReE -HAERRBTRER
—IEEEDAERE BIZERL
&85 & E st H ol &
oM AREMETENEEZ
PIURElE %8 BN EREEE
TEEMBREELEN
2 AU [El& %8 o E AEES
BEERKEEMGSTERE
TEHRAEENREESL
%'fiz;’i;ﬁfﬁﬁ/mi&m
Bz ARGt EIRE M
HWEBRBIBEEDIZHE
2 05 [ 8 /e R A BB R 2R 3R

EMEMS2EERTER
ME’J&T cBEMRAKRKRE
MEBHE M RKRRE
o 82 DB R 2R Al 5 B9 R 2R
HWERE AIREELEK
BB ETHE ©
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AR M B RRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

31. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

(i)

(iii)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

Trade receivables with significant
balances and credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL individually. In
addition, the Group uses practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables which are not assessed
individually using a provision matrix.
The provision rates are based on days
past due as groupings of various
debtors taking into consideration the
Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to
changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 26(a).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories
is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and
the estimated cost necessary to make
the sale. These estimates are based on
the current market conditions and the
historical experience of selling products
of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in
customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

31. EFHEE RAE (&)

(b) EEFBERRZEERKR (B

(i)

(iii)

BWE G F B2 FBRIEE
BTIR

FEBRBEBIGEREKX
BEE#LEEEREZEK
BoMEAEZARESRE
sh AEERBERER
HAGE N EER B EE
FEEEFTENEWNE SN
B AREEBE BHEX
TBEREEHAERZ 8
MR TEEEAERZ
BEEENXRRERBEN
KRR AT ERZ &E
REZFMHRETEERNEZR
HeoREHREHH ~&H
BEMTEELHEREN
R EBHEEERNZE
G

TR E BB E R B E M
2EHEBEHHE -BRATE
HEEBBRAEEREW
B 5 MIE 2 &R E R
5£26(a) ©

A2 TR

FENTEFFEANE
BEEBBETNGLAEE
10 B A 5t 52 AR B9 Al 2 e 85
EFTRESt A A F A5
Th & B Al 5K 0 A i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 &

31. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(iv)

(v)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. The
management reviews the estimated
useful lives and the residual values
of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation
charge for the year. The useful lives
and the residual values are based on
the Group’s historical experience with
similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation charge for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 2(g), the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term.
In determining the lease term at the
commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable
by the Group, the Group evaluates
the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive
for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to
the Group's operation. The lease term is
reassessed when there is a significant
event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s
control. Any increase or decrease in the
lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years

31. EFHEE RAE (&)

iR E MBS R R MY sE

E_E_—F=H=1+—HIEEE

(b) fEStFABERRZEEZRKIR (B

(iv)

(v)

HE

ME BB RREEE RS
SRR EER BHEENM
st fE R E R U EGER
E-EEETHERETEER
ZWE BB R ER G
Rl A H A R BR B E U
REFENEZRR AR
ERFHRRGRERDE
RAEEBHBLUEENB
EREBRFL > WAAE B IR
KM o B ER S H
RERNE > AR RAE
TEXHERARE-

EETH

A UN B ER Y 5E2(g) PR R
HEEBRY T HEHNE
B ERIBEZRERE 1
BARMBAREERE (&
ERHAEBRTENESR
EER) NESAR AEH
REBFIBETEEHERE
FEFR 1S 2 A7 55 A B9 4B R
EERER (BEEERK
M PTETHNAERERE
HEEHAEEZEENSE
2M) & FIEITEEHRE
= Al = SR (DN N ST
EHERANRREREMN
HERET AEERKEN
ST 7H A o AR EARY(E 18 R
B RREEE A
EaRRERAEEENE
(e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR T ER R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #E_ZE_=F=HF=+—HIEEE

31.

32.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(vi)

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are
subject to income taxes, including
capital gain tax, if any, in Hong Kong
and PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many
transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating
to certain temporary differences are
recognised as management considers
it is likely that future taxable profits
will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred
tax assets and income tax charges in
the period in which such estimates are
changed.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2023

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and a new standard which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2023 and which
have not been adopted in these consolidated financial
statements. These developments include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

31.

32.
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32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR E MBS R R MY sE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2023 #HE_ZE_=F=H=+—HIEEE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2023 (continued)

HKFRS 17 and related
Amendments

Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as

HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
and Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants'

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies'

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting

HKAS 8 Estimates’
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets
HKAS 12 and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction'
Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023

a Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined

The directors anticipate that the application of the
above new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Based on the information currently available, the
Directors confirm that there has been no material
adverse change in the financial or trading position of
the Group since the end of the reporting period and up
to the date of this annual report.

32.

33.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEMBRE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
EZE —Z--f T - —TTHE “T-hE
HK$’000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000
FE7T FET FET FET FET
(restated) (restated)
(ER) (ER)
RESULTS £
Revenue from continuing operations HEREEB R 1,888,298 262,229 601,950 481,124 1,113,468
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB E B IRR A
from continuing operations wkl/ (B5E) 3,369 (6,836) (11,912) (2,429) (76,961)
Income tax from continuing operations FHEREEBHMER (2,032) 1,399 (3,078) (3:418) (4,237)
Profit/(loss) for the year SEREERER
from continuing operations Al (6518) 1,337 (5,437) (14,990) (5,847) (81,198)
Non-controlling interests JEE R 505 (15) 92 452 322
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of EABEEANELEE
the Company for the year iafl,/ (518
- from continuing operations —REFEREER 1,842 (5,452) (14,898) (5,395) (80,876)
- from discontinued operation —REBRIEEEF - - (23,009) (11,503) 10,526
1,842 (5,452) (37,907) (16,898) (70,350)
At 31 March
W=ZBA=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Bz T HF T--F ZTTTFE ZNE
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEHERE
Total assets BEME 1,805,176 625,019 977,766 806,380 1,038,764
Total liabilities BELE (1,321,104) (102,995) (472,430) (321,128) (487,655)
Non-controlling interests R 9,134 9,053 8,835 8,319 8,227
493,206 531,077 514,171 494,071 559,336
Equity attributable to owners of AREER NEL#E R
the Company 493,206 531,077 514,171 494,071 559,336
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